
Wirral Schools Forum
Date: Wednesday, 17 January 2018
Time: 6.00 pm

Venue: Council Chamber, Wallasey Town Hall

Contact Officer: Sue Ashley
Tel: 0151 666 4579
e-mail: SueAshley@wirral.gov.uk
Website: http://www.wirral.gov.uk

AGENDA
1. MINUTES OF THE MEETING HELD ON 13TH DECEMBER 2017 

(Pages 1 - 4)

2. MATTERS ARISING 

3. MEAS UPDATE (Pages 5 - 6)

4. REVIEW OF HIGH NEEDS IN WIRRAL (Pages 7 - 16)

5. SCHOOLS AND HIGH NEEDS FUNDING FORMULA 2018-19 
UPDATE (Pages 17 - 36)

6. SCHOOLS BUDGETS 2018-19 (Pages 37 - 52)

7. DE-DELEGATION OF BUDGETS (Pages 53 - 58)

8. SCHOOLS BALANCES AND DEFICIT BUDGETS (Pages 59 - 64)

9. BUDGET MONITORING 2017-18 (Pages 65 - 70)

10. SCHOOLS FORUM MEMBERSHIP AND STRUCTURE (Pages 71 - 
72)

11. SCHOOLS FORUM POWERS AND RESPONSIBILITIES AND 
STRUCTURE (Pages 73 - 82)

12. WORKPLAN (Pages 83 - 84)

Public Document Pack



13. ANY OTHER BUSINESS 



WIRRAL SCHOOLS’ FORUM

13th December 2017

MINUTES

Present: Adrian Whitely (Chair)

Schools Group
L Ayling L Ireland
S Baker (Vice Chair) H Johnson
M Bellamy T Kelly
K Brown N Lightwing
J Bush R Mahony
S Callaghan (sub) K Podmore
B Cassidy S Sorrentino (sub)
B Chadwick T Taylor
M Forber V Woods

Non-Schools Group
S Davies I Harris
A Donelan

In Attendance:
S Allen M Morris
S Ashley A Roberts
P Boyce A Rycroft
A Davies S Talbot
C Fenlon

Apologies:
S Bennett Cllr C Meaden
J Billinge Cllr B Mooney
M Bulmer E Neal
Cllr P Hayes                       N Prance
S Higginson            T Quinn
S Jamieson D Spencer

1. Training Session – Andrew Roberts provided training for new members on the Role of 
the Schools Forum before the meeting.  The session was well attended.

2. Minutes from the Meeting held on 27th September
The minutes from the meeting were accepted as a true record.

3. Matters Arising
There were no matters arising.  Paul Boyce introduced himself as the new Director of 
Children’s Services. 

Page 1

Agenda Item 1



4. School Improvement
Sue Talbot outlined the funding for School Intervention and School Improvement in 2016-
17 and the impact of this funding.  
Work is being carried out to reduce the number of secondary exclusions through different 
strategies, including a 12 week integration scheme for KS3 students permanently 
excluded for the first time.  
From September 2017 a School Improvement Monitoring and Brokering Grant has been 
received to support low performing maintained schools.   
 
Resolved
Forum noted the report.

5. School Formula and High Needs Consultation
Andrew Roberts updated Forum on the move to a National Funding Formula (NFF), 
particularly a minimum 0.5% increase per pupil, and the flexibility given to transfer up to 
0.5% from the Schools Block to the High Needs Block.  A soft formula for the next 2 
years will allow schools a transition period and a phased move towards the NFF.
Andrew Roberts outlined the results of a local consultation with schools in respect of a 
number of proposed changes to the Local Funding Formula in 2018-19.  The 
recommendations in the report for the formula were based on the outcome of this 
consultation.
The Forum Members voted against Option 4 (a transition to NFF and a top slice for high 
needs) and as a result the matter was referred back to the Funding Working Group for 
further discussion.  The Forum will consider the matter again at the January meeting.  
 
Resolved
a. Forum Members voted against Option 4, a transition and top slice for high needs.  7 

for, 9 against, 3 abstentions.
b. Due to option 4 being rejected the following proposals were not voted on:-

I. A revised MFG
II. A reduction of the LAC factor

III. Use of headroom monies
IV. High needs review and transfer of up to .5% of schools block into the high 

Needs block
c. It was noted that the High Needs Working Group will consider the priorities  for the 

High Needs funding and report back to the January Forum meeting
d. Forum agreed that the exclusion budget adjustments in secondary schools is 

amended in line with the statutory guidance. 12 for, 5 abstentions.  
e. Forum agreed that the special school place changes are agreed and implemented 

from September 2018.  12 for, 6 abstentions.
f. Forum agreed to create a Clinical Psychology Team.  17 for, 1 abstention.
g. Forum agreed to use element 2 funding in schools for Hearing and Vision from 

September 18 and develop an SLA through the High Needs working Group.  9 for, 5 
against, 4 abstentions.

h. The decision to continue offering de-delegated services to schools was deferred to 
the next meeting.

Page 2



i. Forum agreed to increase the membership of the High Needs Working Group.  Jon 
Bush volunteered to become a representative.  Any others wishing to join the group 
contact Margaret Morris.

6. Early Years Consultation
Shaun Allen briefed Forum on the outcome of the Early Years funding consultation and 
updated on other early years issues.
The consultation sought views of Early Years Providers on a number of areas including 
the Inclusive Practice Fund, the introduction of monthly payments, a review of the 
existing formula and an increase in the overall Early Years base rate.
Wirral has received supplementary funding from the DfE to protect Maintained Nursery 
School funding at 2016-17 rates.  This will be available until 2018-19.  
Although there have been difficulties with the Early Years extended offer, uptake is 
similar to Wirral’s statistical neighbours and is expected to increase in the spring term.
Uptake for the Disability Access Fund has been fairly slow.  Providers will be reminded 
about the fund.  Uptake of the Early Years Pupil Premium has increased significantly this 
financial year.

Resolved
I. Forum noted the report

II. Forum agreed the arrangements for the Inclusive Practice Fund
III. Forum agreed to move to monthly payments for childcare providers from Autumn 

2018, with payments made at the beginning of each month.
IV. Forum agreed to retain the formula in its current structure, with the existing 

supplements and rates unchanged.
V. Forum agreed the increase in the base rate from £3.60 to £3.68

7. Scheme for Financing Schools and Teacher Conditions
Andrew Roberts briefed the Forum on the outcome of the consultation on changes to the 
Scheme for Financing Schools and the changes to Teachers Employment Rights.  The 
areas being consulted on were:-

 revised wording to cover losses arising from a schools failure to seek advice, or 
act on advice given

 A 12 month notice period for SLAs provided by the LA
 An increase to the maximum licensed deficit amount from 5% to 10%
 Teachers moving from an academy school to a maintained school to keep their 

terms and conditions in line with the employment rights of other school staff 

Resolved
I. Forum agreed the changes to the Scheme for Financing Schools.  4 for, 14 

abstentions
II. Forum agreed the terms and conditions of teachers in line with other school staff. 

Unanimous. 

8. Forum Membership and Early Years Representation
Carole Fenlon discussed a request that PVI representation should be increased to more 
broadly represent the early year’s sector.  Members were also given the opportunity to 
identify other areas where representation may increase.  Suggestions provided were:-

Page 3



 Nursery Classes
 14-19 year olds
 Youth

Resolved
Voting was deferred to the next meeting.

9. Workplan
The workplan was provided for information.

The dates of the meetings for the coming academic year are:-
Wednesday 17th January 2018
Wednesday 25th April 2018
Wednesday 4th July 2018

Andrew Roberts will circulate dates for the next Schools Funding Working Group and the 
High Needs Working Group.

10.Any Other Business
There was no other business

Page 4



Wirral Schools Forum
Minority Ethnic Achievement Service (MEAS)
17th January 2018

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY
This report updates the Forum on the developments within the Minority Ethnic 
Achievement service and the service plans for 2018-19.

BACKGROUND
MEAS is a fully traded service within the council.

Income Source Income April 2017
- March 2018

Wirral SLA schools 
72 schools (62 primary, 7 secondary, 3 special)

£102,615

Out of borough schools & non SLA £1,200

Children’s Centre SLA £26,260

Life Long Learning SLA £8,100

Syrian Refugee Support £7,510

Total £145,685

CUSTOMER PRIORITIES:
 Support for pupils/families with EAL (English as an Additional Language) 

which include assessments, staff training and learning walks
 Support for SMSC (Spiritual, Moral, Social and Cultural) development which 

include Multicultural workshops/sessions focussing upon languages, 
countries, cultures and religions and School of Sanctuary 

 Support for challenging racism and race equality planning in schools
 Support for engaging with BME (Black and Minority Ethnic) families and 

improving outcomes.

2017-18 HIGHLIGHTS
 Supported the settlement of more than 50 Syrian refugee children in Wirral 

schools
 5 Schools of Sanctuary awarded in July and 12 new schools working towards 

the award this year.
 MEAS on twitter has a growing number of followers.
 Successful outcomes for registration and engagement of BME families with 

Birkenhead and Wallasey Children’s Centres
 New EAL and ESOL volunteers training in collaboration with Lifelong 

Learning. 

Page 5

Agenda Item 3



2018-19 PRIORITIES
 To continue meeting the needs of Wirral schools and to be flexible to changes 

in demand. Schools maintain current level of buyback in the challenging 
economic climate.

 To promote services more intensively out of borough, especially SMSC 
provision.

 To support Mayor Ann McLachlan with a new initiative to celebrate Spiritual, 
Moral, Social and Cultural development in schools.

 To target funding for challenging racism with a focus upon particular 
communities with repeated incidents. 

STAFFING
There are currently 4.2 FTE members of staff (8 members of staff)
1FTE manager
0.4 FTE teacher/consultant
1.2 Teaching assistants (2 staff)
1.4 Bilingual project officers (3 staff)
0.2 Administrative assistant  

Additional voluntary staff support with different language requirements as and when 
required.

The service is based at:

Birkenhead Town Hall, Mortimer St, Birkenhead, Wirral CH41 5EU
Please see our entry in the Wirral Traded Services Brochure for more information on 
the service offer and pricing. 

Paul Boyce
Director of Children’s Services

Page 6



1

Review of High Needs SEN in Wirral

Margaret Morris – SEN Senior Manager SEND 

Sally Gibbs – School Admissions / Place Planning

January 2018

Introduction

Wirral is committed to ensuring that there is sufficient, high quality Special Educational Needs and 
Disability (SEND) provision to meet the needs of Wirral’ s children and young people with complex 
educational needs. This commitment is outlined in Wirral’s Children and Families strategy which 
states that ‘we will develop ambitious and inclusive plans to improve outcomes for children with 
special educational needs and / or disabilities, using their plans and national best practice to inform 
our local approach to commissioning school places.’

In light of the Council’s pledge and its statutory duty to review school provision to ensure that it is 
responsive to needs a review was undertaken. The review took place from May to December 2017.

Key Principles

Children and young people with SEND require high quality provision that enables them to make 
good progress towards meeting their outcomes. Wirral recognises that if life chances are to be 
improved, inclusive opportunities have to be promoted and a continuum of provision is required.  

Wirral undertook a review of SEND provision to explore the current and the future requirements for 
specialist places within the authority. The review was asked to focus on how many specialist places 
will be required given recent trends and where such provision should be located. It was also asked to 
examine the numbers accessing non-maintained provision and how this number could be managed 
to ensure that Wirral used its resources in an efficient way. 

The education system is shifting nationally to more of a school-led system and on Wirral school to 
school support is provided through the Locality Boards.  As the population of SEND is significant in all 
schools the Local Authority needs to support school leaders in building their own capacity for the 
local leadership of SEND. Any new resource base  or other provision needs to be strategically located 
and should have the capacity to offer SEND support to schools within their locality.

Purpose of the Review 

1. The review will provide direction for the Local Authority to secure effective inclusive 
provision for children and young people and to map out how specialist provision should be 
shaped to achieve the 2020 vision. It will ensure that there is a continuum of high quality 
local provision for young children and young people from 0-25 years of age with special 
educational needs.

2. The review will ensure that the LA has sustainable provision that makes best use of the 
Wirral pound and improves educational attainment for SEND pupils. It will explore 
integrated approaches to supporting these pupils. 

3. The desired outcome of this review are that 

Page 7

Agenda Item 4



2

 Provision will continue to meet needs over the medium term
 Current provision across mainstream and specialist setting will improve for children with 

special educational needs and disability
  More SEND pupils will be educated in their local mainstream school with appropriate 

levels of support and that the achievement gap for this group will be closed. 
 The redesign of specialist provision will result in more efficient and effective use of 

resources.  

1.0 Key Findings:

Wirral continues to have high levels of children and young people with Statements of SEN/Education 
Health and Care Plans (EHCPs) in addition to having a high proportion of children identified as 
needing SEN Support. These numbers are higher than the average of our statistical neighbours and 
of England. There is a perception that an application for an Education Health Care Needs Assessment 
guarantees that needs will be met and that these needs may be best met in the special school 
sector.

As at October 2017 there were 1146 children and young people on roll at one of ten special schools, 
the hospital school and the PRU. This number has increased from 983 in 2007, an increase of 17%.  
There are 210 children and young people with SEND in Resource Base Provision. All provision is full 
or nearly full at primary with some capacity at secondary.

The special school population is growing well in excess of the increase in birth rate. Some of the 
reasons may include improved medical care, increased diagnosis of primary and secondary need and 
the impact of the standards agenda adversely affecting inclusive practice in mainstream schools. The 
pressure in the special schools is SEMH (primary), ASC (primary/ secondary), MLD (secondary) and 
SLD (primary/ secondary).

Special schools in Wirral cannot collectively meet the needs or the demands of all Wirral children 
with SEND at the current time, as nearly all schools are at capacity. There is no appetite by the Local 
Authority to expand the special school sector as the resources in terms of capital investment and 
revenue funding do not support it. There is a need therefore to invest in the wider range of provision 
including mainstream provision and Resource Bases. School leaders and families need to develop 
more confidence that children’s needs can be met and positive outcomes achieved in inclusive 
environments and that children benefit from being part of their local community.

However, the increase of places in Resource bases and financial support for children with SEND in 
their local mainstream school can only be viable if a number of places are decommissioned in the 
special school sector or in the specialist sector where there is limited take up. 

2.0 Overall Financial Picture:

Funding for High Needs is through the Schools Budget and a new national funding formula. In 2018-
19 Wirral will receive £35.2m in total to support SEND provision in Early Years, schools and colleges.

Page 8



3

The proposed changes that are described in this phase of the review will be met from the High 
Needs Budget. However although there are additional resources allocated to Wirral these are 
unlikely to be sufficient by themselves in the short term. There is a need for an additional financial 
commitment for a transitional period which will pump prime the changes that are being considered.  

New funding regulations allow for the consideration of a top slice of up to 0.5% from School Budgets 
which can be added to the High Needs Budget. This amount is the equivalent of £1m per annum.

3.0 Mainstream Schools

There is strong evidence of high quality learning experiences being offered to children with SEND by 
mainstream schools. This is reflected in Ofsted reports and the outcomes achieved by this group of 
children. However, for some parents, there is a perception that if children are identified as requiring 
SEND Support then needs may be better met in the specialist/ special school sector. For this small 
group of parents confidence in mainstream provision needs to be strengthened. 

Alongside this there is a need to develop the capacity of mainstream schools to meet a wider range 
of learning needs. Wirral is committed to investing in services and mainstream provision that will 
prevent children from requiring more costly packages later in life. It acknowledges that support will 
be required as schools balance meeting the needs of all children with the pressure to improve 
standards alongside the level of resources that are delegated directly to schools. There is a need for 
further conversations with the mainstream sector about sufficiency requirements to ensure a broad 
continuum of provision is developed to meet the need of children with SEN.

To ensure that Wirral Children with SEND have the same opportunities of inclusive education as that 
of Statistical Neighbours and of England, a wide range of training and SEND support is being 
developed.  These changes follow feedback from schools and will specifically focus on the areas of 
ASC and SEMH. A newly formed school intervention team will support the work of the educational 
psychologists and will utilise the expertise of the special school sector. Clinical psychologists will 
form part of this specialist team.

Mainstream Schools will be encouraged to fully utilise their Element 2 funding to support pupils 
identified as requiring SEND Support. Should additional funding be required schools should apply for 
Pupil Funding Agreements (PFA’s).  

There are also a growing number of F2 children who are not ready for mainstream provision. This 
group of children require a smaller more nurturing environment in which more detailed assessments 
can take place prior to them being put forward for an Education, Health and Care Needs Assessment. 
A large proportion of these children may have Social, Emotional and Mental Health needs. Schools  
have expressed an appetite for being able to purchase an assessment place from an early years 
setting for these children who are deemed as not ready for school. These places would ensure that 
needs can be fully assessed and effective interventions and strategies be put in place prior to 
transition into mainstream primary settings.

The Local Authority should consider

 Creating 24 additional places for young children F2-Y1 who will benefit from inclusive 
mainstream schooling delivered in a small nurturing environment. They are those children 

Page 9



4

who are not ready for school and have or may have SEND. This change will enhance existing 
provision and ensure that there is a sufficient supply of places in specialist provision in 
Wirral.

3.1 Financial Implications

There are no additional costs associated with the establishment of the School Intervention Team

The LA will carefully monitor the costs associated with the PFA and ensure that all spend is carefully 
monitored and reviewed.

It is anticipated that the 24 places in early years settings will be purchased by mainstream schools 
from their delegated budgets. 

4.0 Specialist Provision
 
The Resource Bases are situated in a range of Primary and Secondary Schools. They are recognised 
as offering small group provision with teaching delivered by highly skilled practitioners. They are 
particularly popular with parents as they offer a range of inclusive opportunities and provide the 
children with the opportunity to engage with a wide cohort of children. However, the numbers of 
places in the Resource Bases is no longer sufficient for the growing number of children being 
identified as benefitting from such provision. Examining current demands and trends additional 
capacity will have to be developed. 

Additional difficulties have been created as Resource Base provision has developed at differing rates 
for primary and secondary schools. The current number of ASC places in resource bases at primary is 
56 whereas in secondary the number of available places is 35. For MLD the number in resource 
bases at primary is 36, whereas in secondary the number of available places is 50. The discrepancy 
between primary and secondary places has resulted in a number of children leaving ASC primary 
resource bases and entering a special secondary school as provision is not mirrored. For the MLD 
population there have not been sufficient places in primary resulting in a number of children 
entering the special school sector whose needs may have been better served in a Resource Base. 
The evidence shows that if a child is in a Special Primary School there is limited take up for 
Secondary Resource Base provision. This has resulted in there being unfilled Secondary Resource 
provision. 

There is effective support in Key Stage 1 for those children who have SEMH. There are currently 16 
places in two mainstream schools and there is a commitment to effectively support these children at 
a very young age and reintegrate them into mainstream provision for Key Stage 2. However, for a 
small number this is not possible and this cohort enters the Primary SEMH school. It may be more 
appropriate for provision to continue in a Resource Base in a mainstream school, allowing the 
primary SEMH school to cater for those with the highest level of need.

A number of children have been identified by schools as having SEMH who struggle considerably in 
year 5 to year 6. This group of children find it difficult to effectively transition into mainstream 
secondary school and require a smaller setting for year 5 to year 7/8. The establishment of a SEMH 

Page 10



5

base for year 5-year 8 pupils in a secondary school would ensure that they can effectively transition 
into mainstream secondary provision at some point in the future.  

The Local Authority should consider 

 Increasing ASC Resource Base provision by an additional 8 places at primary and by an 
additional 20 at secondary. The provision at secondary will need to be continually reviewed 
to ensure that there is sufficient capacity in light of the primary numbers coming through.   

 Increasing the number of MLD Resource Provision by an additional 16 places at primary and 
by an additional 10 at secondary. The provision at secondary will need to be continually 
reviewed to ensure that there is sufficient capacity in light of the primary numbers coming 
through.   

 Create two Resource Base provisions of 10 places each for SEMH primary pupils. 
 Create a year 5-year 8 Resource base of 8 places in a secondary school for SEMH pupils.

4.1 Financial Implications

 Increase Primary ASC Resource Base Provision by 8 places : £96,000
 Increase Secondary ASC Resource Base Provision by 20 places : £260,000
 Increase Primary MLD Resource Base Provision by 16 places : £96,000
 Increase Secondary MLD Resource Base Provision by 16 places : £96,000
 Create Primary SEMH Resource Base Provision by 20 places : £240,000
 Create year 5-year 8 SEMH Resource Base Provision by 8 places : £96,000

Full year costs of £884,000.

This can only be implemented in the short term through a top slice of school budgets. In the 
longer term funding would be through a reduction in places in special school provision.

5.0 Special School Provision

There are currently 10 special schools on Wirral, 5 at primary and 5 at secondary. In addition there is 
a Hospital School and a Pupil Referral Unit. All of the special schools and the Hospital School are 
recognised as good or outstanding and each one offers high quality teaching and learning 
opportunities for its population. The range of need catered for includes SpLD, MLD, ASD, SEMH, 
PMLD and SLD. The latter is referred to as Complex Leaning Difficulty on the Wirral.

All special school provision for SpLD, MLD, ASD, PMLD and SLD is full or over numbers (October 2017 
census). SEMH is full at primary and there are some spaces at secondary. 

Wirral’s figures for those attending special schools are very different to the England average. 

SpLD

 3.7% with SpLD attend a special school compared to England average of 1.4%. This number 
is decreasing but still considerably higher than the England average. However, the high 
percentage relates to those predominately in Year 5 and 6 of Orrets Meadow. 

Page 11



6

 Orrets Meadow has a total school population of 77; distribution is 40 SpLD, 36 ASC. It 
currently has 36 children with SpLD in years 4, 5 and 6.  In 2020, there will be 15 pupils 
comprising of 4 pupils with SpLD and 7 ASC pupils. 

MLD

 12.55% with MLD attend a mainstream school compared to England average of 23.65%. 
Whilst the number of primary children with moderate learning difficulties (MLD) accessing 
special school provision has started to decrease, the number of secondary children with MLD 
attending special school provision is not decreasing at the same pace. This is in part due to 
the numbers requesting provision from primary resource provision being high. 

 Hayfield has a total school population of 128; distribution is 47 MLD, 81 ASC. It currently has 
26 children with MLD in years 4, 5 and 6.  In 2020, there will be 67 pupils comprising of 21 
MLD pupils and 46 ASC pupils. 

 Clare Mount has a total school population of 229; distribution is 136 pupils with MLD and 93 
ASC pupils. It currently has 47 children with MLD in years 12, 13 and 14.  In 2020, there will 
be 168 pupils comprising of 89 pupils with MLD and 79 ASC pupils. 

SEMH

 15.2% with SEMH attend a special school compared to England average of 12.5%. The 
primary SEMH school Gilbrook is over numbers with increased pressure on places. The two 
secondary schools, Kilgarth and The Observatory have a small number of vacant places.

SLD 

 The number of children being identified as having Severe Learning Difficulties is increasing 
and additional capacity will have to sourced. By 2020, an additional 20 primary places will be 
required and 22 secondary places.

Inclusion

 Whilst the Local Authority has distributed a substantial budget to promote inclusion into 
mainstream provision, the number of children receiving inclusive packages is small. Very few 
children transfer from the special school to either a Resource Base or a mainstream school. 

Independent Sector 

 Despite a large special school provision in Wirral, there are still a significant number of 
children with an EHCP placed in the Independent Sector. Some of these placements are 
because of breakdown whereas others are there because of educational break down.  There 
is a lack of places available to meet current and future demand in our Special Schools for 
those with very complex and challenging needs. Capacity needs to be developed within 
Wirral special schools for this population with Complex Learning Difficulties and Social, 
Emotional, Mental Health (SEMH).

Page 12



7

The Local Authority should consider 

SpLD

 Ensuring that children with SpLD, unless needs are extremely complex, have their needs met 
in the mainstream sector. Orrets should be re-designated as a primary school for ASD 
retaining the staff skills in SpLD through the well-respected Orrets Meadow outreach 
intervention work.

 Orrets should be a 60 place ASC school by 2020, admitting 14 ASC pupils in 2018, 2019, 
2020, bringing total population to 57. This reduction in numbers will allow the special school 
to focus on pupils with more complex needs, including ASD and challenging behaviour.

MLD

 Working with school leaders and parents to ensure that children who have MLD have their 
needs effectively met either within primary or secondary Resource Base provision or within 
the primary or secondary mainstream sector. This piece of work will ensure that primary 
provision is mirrored at secondary. Examining the profile of the pupils requiring special 
school provision at Primary a maximum of 10 MLD places will be required in special 
secondary provision. The lifelong opportunities for these children if attending an inclusive 
mainstream secondary school will be enhanced.

 Reduction in pupil population in both schools will allow the  schools to focus on pupils with 
more complex needs, including ASD and challenging behaviour.

 Hayfield should be a 90 place ASC school by 2020, admitting 10 ASC pupils in 2018, 2019, 
2020, bringing total population to 91.

 Clare Mount should be a 190 place ASC School by 2020. This is in light of the Secondary ASC/ 
MLD Resource Base Provision being established.  This number should continue to reduce 
after 2020 as the intake reduces.

 From 2018 the maximum number of places commissioned by the LA in Clare Mount for years 
12, 13 and 14 will be 30 places across the three year groups for those with the most complex 
needs. 

 Building the confidence of the families of MLD children in local college provision and 
ensuring that the benefits of inclusive college post 16 provision is discussed at the Year 9 
Annual Review. 

SEMH
 Reduce the number of pupils in Gilbrook to 45, allowing them to have the facilities to cater 

for the most complex pupils.
SLD

 Increasing places at the 4 SLD schools in light of the growing numbers and forward planning 
for the considerable increase in numbers by 2020 of 20 SLD places in primary and 22 in 
secondary.

Inclusion

 Carefully monitoring the inclusive packages that children from the special schools are 
accessing and the impact that these are having. 

Page 13



8

 Additional work is required to develop flexible pathways to enable children and young 
people access the right provision and services to meet their individual needs at different 
stages. There is a substantial piece of work to be done around placement step down, as 
there is little evidence of this happening on Wirral.

Independent Sector

 Developing the capacity within the special school sector to ensure that fewer children with 
SEMH attend out of borough placements for educational reasons.

5.1 Financial Implications

By 2020

SpLD

 Re-designate Orrets Meadow as a 60 place ASC School. Population in 2020 will be 56 ASC 
and 4 SpLD places. 

 Place saving x 10 = £100,000. Top up saving for SpLD 36 Places = £39,600. Saving  £139,600
 Top up cost for 56 ASC Pupils of which 20 are additional (Additional cost is 20 x £6,100 = 

£122,000). 

Total reduction £17,600

MLD

 Re-designate Hayfield as a 90 place ASC School. Population in 2020 will be 69 ASC and 21 
MLD places. 

 Place saving x 30 = £300,000. Top up saving for MLD 26 Places = £28,600. Top up saving for  
reduction in ASC Population of 12 pupils = £73,200

Reduction £401,800

 Re-designate Clare Mount as a 190 place ASC School. Population in 2020 will be 101 ASC and 
89 MLD places. 

 Place saving x 20 = £200,000. Top up saving for MLD 47 Places = £51,700. Additional spend 
for increase in ASC numbers of 8 = £48,800 Saving £202,900

Total reduction £604,700

SEMH

 Reduce the place numbers in Gilbrook to 45.
 Place saving x 10 +£100,000. Top up saving for 10 SEMH places = £671,000   Saving £171,000
 Where possible the number of children with SEMH in out of borough placements with 

placements being provided by the special school sector. 

Total reduction £171,700

Page 14



9

SLD
 Create an additional 20 SLD places in primary and 22 in secondary by 2020.
 Cost £420,000 place funding +Top Up £340,200

Total Increase £760,200

5.2 Overall Financial Summary

Cost Budget Reduction
Resource Base Provision £884,000

Special School SpLD £17,600
Special School MLD £604,700
Special School SEMH £171,000
Special School SLD £760,200

£1,644,200 £793,300
Net Increase of Budget 
Allocation

£850,900

The introduction of the new National Funding Formula for High Needs indicates an increase in 
funding for 2019-2020 of £900,000. The Review anticipates that this and future allocations will 
be sufficient to meet increased demand in SLD and other areas within High Needs.

6.0 Summary of Recommendations:
 To top slice the Schools Budget  by ½ % and increase the High Needs budget for a 2 year 

period to enable changes to take place and become embedded.
 Ensure that EHCP are issued for those children with the highest need.
 Promote Pupil Funding Agreement (PFAs) where appropriate. Work with paediatricians and 

schools to promote PFAs and encourage consideration of local mainstream inclusion bases 
where appropriate, e.g. for MLD. Manage parental expectation through positive promotion 
of mainstream schools and of mainstream inclusion bases.

 Inclusion and Local provision – increase and fully utilise the number of base places available 
in mainstream schools, particularly Birkenhead and Wallasey. 

In September 2018:

 Ensure that all secondary base provision is fully utilised-19 unfilled places
 Create 24 additional places for young children F2-Y1 who will benefit from inclusive 

mainstream schooling delivered in a small nurturing environment
 Establish MLD primary base (preferably  in Wallasey Area) 16 places
 Establish ASD primary base (preferably  in Wallasey Area) 8 places
 Establish 2 SEMH primary bases (preferably  in Birkenhead Area and Bromborough 

Area) 10 places each
 Establish Year 5/Year 6 base in a secondary school for SEMH (8 places)

Page 15



10

In September 2019:
 Establish MLD secondary base (preferably  in Wallasey Area) 16 places
 Establish ASD secondary base (preferably  in Wallasey Area) 20 places


In September 2020
 Re-designate Orrets Meadow as a 60 place ASC School. 
 Re-designate Hayfield as a 90 place ASC School. 
 Re-designate Clare Mount as a 190 place ASC School. 
 Reduce the place numbers in Gilbrook to 45.
 Create an additional 20 SLD places in primary CLD schools and 22 in secondary CLD 

schools.

Further Pieces of Work Required

 Further piece of work to be undertaken regarding post 16 provision and sufficiency of 
places.

 Further piece of work to be undertaken regarding language base provision and the effective 
deployment of Speech and Language therapists.  

Page 16



WIRRAL COUNCIL
SCHOOLS FORUM – 17th JANUARY 2018
REPORT OF THE DIRECTOR OF CHILDREN’S SERVICES

SCHOOLS AND HIGH NEEDS FUNDING FORMULA 2018-19 UPDATE

1. EXECUTIVE SUMMARY
This report seeks the views of Schools Forum on two matters with regard to the 
Schools Budget for 2018-19:

- The consideration of a 0.5% top slice from the Schools Budget for High 
Needs

- The format of the Schools Funding Formula for 2018-19.

2. BACKGROUND
The Schools Funding formula is the means to distribute £198.6m to Wirral’s 111 
maintained and academy primary and secondary schools.
The Funding Formula and Top Slice was previously considered by the Forum on 13th 
December 2017. This report is attached for reference. 
The meeting did not agree with the proposal for a transitional formula and a top slice 
from the Schools Budget of 0.5%. Instead members asked for the matter to be 
referred back to the Schools Formula Working Group for further discussion. This 
took place on 9th January and notes from the meeting are attached.

 
3. LOCAL SCHOOLS FUNDING FORMULA GUIDELINES
Wirral remains responsible for agreeing the funding formula for schools until a “hard” 
formula is implemented; this is expected in 2020-21. During this intervening time the 
NFF will run alongside any local formula for schools.
This “soft” period is seen by the DfE as a transition, giving LA’s flexibility to move 
towards the NFF and may also protect against turbulence. 

In agreeing any changes to the formula for schools the final decision is taken by the 
Council and Cabinet. The LA is required to consult with schools on any proposals. In 
addition School Forum members must also be consulted on their views. If the Forum 
does not express a clear view Cabinet would still make a decision on the schools 
formula, this would however then be more difficult to do.

Decisions on a top slice of school budgets require the approval of the Forum. If this 
is not given a top slice can only be implemented with agreement of the Secretary of 
State, in the timescales set out this would be difficult to achieve. 

Regulations confirm that in considering the recommendations arising from this report 
Forum voting is restricted, by the exclusion of all non-schools members except PVI 
representatives. 

Page 17

Agenda Item 5



4. REVISED SCHOOL FUNDING FORMULA PROPOSALS
The Schools Funding Formula Working Group proposed that for clarity the decision 
on the Funding Formula  and the Top Slice should be separated and that members 
should express their views on all the relevant options.

On this basis a decision will be taken first on:
- Should there be a 0.5% top slice from the Schools Budget to support the 

outcome of the High Needs Review?
-

If the answer to this question is yes the following funding options will be considered:
- A transition formula introducing some elements of NFF (Option 4) 
- Using the existing funding formula (option 2 with top slice)

A National Funding Formula (Option 1) was not agreed by the Formula Working 
group and is not proposed. Around 20% of schools receive less than the 0.5% 
increase in cash terms and would therefore receive a cut in funding from a top slice. 

If the answer to the top slice question is no then Options 1, 2 and 3 will be 
considered:

Option 1 – move straight to NFF values
Option 2 – use existing funding formula
Option 3 – transition and introduce some elements of NFF

All models are illustrated in Appendix 3 attached. The models use 2017-18 pupil 
numbers and data; whereas the 2018-19 budget will be based on October 17 pupil 
numbers. Final budget allocations will therefore change and may increase / decrease 
from this position. 

5. HIGH NEEDS PLACES
At the last meeting members were asked to agree High Needs place changes from 
September 2018. For clarity and consistency with the budget this recommendation 
should be withdrawn. It was not intended that all the increased numbers described in 
the consultation paper should result in a change in place numbers, as clear trends 
and numbers have not been established for future years.
The revised recommendation is to only change the following places from September 
2018:

- Birkenhead 6th Form College reduce by 8 places to 57
- Wirral Met College to increase by 2 places to 119

6. RECOMMENDATIONS

That:
6.1. There should there be a 0.5% top slice from the Schools Budget to support the 

outcome of the High needs

Page 18



6.2      That the school funding formula should be based on either 
- A transition formula introducing some elements of NFF (Option 4)
- Use existing funding formula (option 2 with top slice)

 
6.3    If the answer to the top slice is no then the school funding formula should be 

based on:
- Option 1 – move straight to NFF values  
- Or Option 2 – use the existing funding formula
- Or Option 3 – transition and introduce some elements of NFF

 
6.4 For all funding models with the exception of the National funding Formula

- Headroom is allocated evenly over all funding formula elements and that 
PFI is increased in line with the contract inflation provision

- The unit value of the LAC element within the formula is reduced to take 
account of the increase in LAC Pupil Premium

6.5 That recommendation 5 e  from the 13th December meeting “Forum agree that 
the special school place changes are agreed and implemented from September 
2018” is withdrawn and replaced with:

The following place changes are agreed from September 2018:
   Birkenhead 6th Form College reduce by 8 places to 57
   Wirral Met College to increase by 2 places to 119

Paul Boyce
Director of Children’s Services

Appendices
1. Forum Report 13th December – Changes to School Funding Formula 2018-19 
2. Notes from the Forum Formula Working Group 9th January 2018
3. Illustration of Funding Formula Options

Page 19



This page is intentionally left blank



Appendix 1
WIRRAL COUNCIL
SCHOOLS FORUM – 13th DECEMBER 2017
REPORT OF THE DIRECTOR OF CHILDREN’S SERVICES

CHANGES TO THE SCHOOLS FUNDING FORMULA 2018-19

1. EXECUTIVE SUMMARY
This report recommends a number of changes to the local funding formula for 
schools as a first step in a transition to the new National Funding Formula 
announced by the Department for Education in the summer.
In addition the report recommends a top slice of up to ½% of the Schools Block in 
order to fund the outcome of the High Needs review.

2. BACKGROUND
The Secretary of State confirmed details of the new National Funding Formula (NFF) 
for schools in September which will be in place from April 2018. The format of the 
formula remains largely unchanged from earlier consultation papers with a few 
important additions:

 At least a 0.5% increase per pupil for each school in 2018/19;
 At least £4,800 per pupil funding for each secondary school and £3,500 per 

pupil funding for each primary school by 2019/20, with a transitional amount of 
£4,600 and £3,300 in 2018/19; 

 The overall schools’ block funding provided to local authorities to be ring-
fenced, with some limited flexibility to transfer up to 0.5% out of the Schools 
Block to High Needs, subject to Schools’ Forum approval.

These changes result in an additional £3m for Wirral schools using October 2016 
data, which is equivalent to a 1.6% increase against the published baseline budget. 
This is a significant improvement both on earlier papers and previous funding 
settlements.
The High Needs Block will also increase from £34m to £34.8m, an increase of 
£0.8m.

3. LOCAL SCHOOLS FUNDING FORMULA GUIDELINES
Wirral remains responsible for agreeing the funding formula for schools until a “hard” 
formula is implemented; which is expected in 2020-21. During this intervening time 
the NFF will run alongside any local formula for schools.
This “soft” period is seen by the DfE as a transition, giving LA’s flexibility to move 
towards the NFF and may also protect against turbulence. 

In agreeing any changes to the funding formula for schools the final decision is taken 
by the Council and Cabinet. The LA is required to consult with schools on any 
proposals. In addition School Forum members must also be consulted on their 
views. 

Page 21



Regulations confirm that in considering the recommendations arising from this report 
Forum voting is restricted, by the exclusion of all non-schools members except PVI 
representatives. 

4. CONSULTATION WITH SCHOOLS
Schools have been consulted on the following proposals:

1. Retaining the local funding formula or a move to the NFF;
2. A revised MFG;
3. A reduction of the Looked after Children (LAC) factor;
4. Use of any “Headroom” monies;
5. High Needs Review and transfer of up to 1/2% of schools block funding in to 

the High Needs Block.
6. The priorities for High Needs funding
7. Changes in High Needs places
8. The redesign of some SEN support including the introduction of a traded 

service for some hearing and vison support in schools
9. The services that should continue to be offered through De-delegation

The consultation ran for 3 weeks from 12th November until 4th December. In addition 
there were briefings with Headteacher groups and some earlier discussions with 
governors.
In total there were 33 responses:

- 11 from Secondary schools (c.50%) 
- 16 from Primary schools (c.20%)
- 6 from Special schools. (c.50%).

Whilst this is not a large response, comments received covered a wide range of 
provision across the school estate.

5. SUMMARY OF RESPONSES

Q1. Should Wirral retain the local funding formula or move to the NFF from 
April 2018?

4 options were presented for schools to consider as part of the funding consultation, 
these illustrated the overall implications for schools and the individual implications for 
each school. The options were: 

Option 1 – move straight to NFF values
Option 2 – use existing funding formula
Option 3 – transition and introduce some elements of NFF
Option 4 – As above with up to a 1/2 % top slice for High Needs

The responses received did not give a clear view. A number of schools commented 
that they thought that the new NFF gave an opportunity to correct a level of historic 
underfunding, whilst some others said they had voted on the option that best suited 
them. Schools that selected a top slice commented on the need to have both a 
transition to the NFF and to be able to respond to High Needs demands and the 
increasingly complex needs in mainstream schools.

A similar number of primary and secondary schools chose option 1 (NFF) and option 
4 (top slice). Including special schools option 4 was the preferred option.

Page 22



Recommendation
That taking account of additional comments in Question 5 a transition and High 
Needs top slice (Option 4) is implemented as the basis for the school funding 
formula for 2018-19.

Q2. A revised Minimum Funding Guarantee of 0%
Nearly all responses supported this option, as it was seen as ensuring no school 
would lose pupil funding in 2018-19 unless there is a reduction in pupil numbers.
Recommendation
That the funding formula includes a 0% MFG in 21018-19

Q3. Reduction of Looked after Children (LAC) factor
The proposal to reduce this factor to take account of changes within Pupil Premium 
was generally supported. Those that didn’t commented that there was a need for 
more support for children looked after.
Recommendation
The unit value of the LAC element within the formula is reduced to take account of 
an increase in the Pupil Premium.

Q4. Use of Headroom in the Formula
There were not many responses to this question. Those that did commented that the 
increase in funding should be evenly distributed across all formula values. Some 
commented that PFI funding should be uplifted ( PFI costs would be increased both 
locally and nationally within the NFF).
Recommendation
That Headroom is allocated evenly over all funding formula elements and that the 
PFI element is increased in line with the contract inflation provision.

Q5. High Needs Review and transfer of up to 0.5% of Schools Block 
funding in to the High Needs Block

Those schools selecting funding formula Option 4 also agreed with this question. 
The possibility of a top slice off school funding for high needs has been put in place 
by the DfE to give some flexibility to authorities responding to national increases both 
in high needs numbers and complexity of needs. Locally these pressures in Wirral 
are similar to many other areas. 
A longer term strategy is being developed including a review of provision to take 
account of the impact of current and future pupil trends. Some outcomes from this 
review will need to be implemented quickly, including the expansion of some 
resource bases in mainstream schools. In making changes this will require an 
additional financial commitment over a transition period until numbers are brought 
more in line with averages elsewhere.
Guidance from the ESFA is written on the basis that a funding transfer is to be seen 
as a one off and that funding in future years requires additional approvals. Finally 
there is an expectation that plans are in place to avoid such transfers over the longer 
term.
 
In the response to the question about a top slice no school suggested a different 
percentage either higher or lower than that proposed. Positive comments were the 

Page 23



need for investment to meet demands and provide greater support; that this was the 
best option for the majority of schools and that all schools should contribute to the 
support costs for young people. Alternative views were that if agreed there would be 
less funding for mainstream schools when all schools face increasing pressures and 
that a top slice decision should be taken after the High Needs review is completed.
Recommendations
That a ½% top slice from the schools budget is approved and used to support the 
outcomes of the High Needs Review
That the Forum receives an update on the review at its next meeting in January.

Q6a Priorities for High Needs funding
There were a range of comments to this question. Some talked about the support 
provided to settings, the need for speech and language resources, and the need for 
sufficient specialist placements. Existing commitments are a priority; however there 
was also support for proposals around SEMH, CLD and Alternative Provision.
A further report will be considered at the January Forum meeting alongside the 
2018-19 budget.
Recommendation
That the High Needs working group consider the priorities for High Needs funding 
and report to the January Forum meeting

Q6b Excluded Pupils 
This proposal will change the basis of budget adjustments in secondary schools to 
bring them in line with statutory guidance.
Nearly all responses supported this change to cease a local agreement whereby a 
secondary school pays a full year fee regardless of the point in time of an exclusion 
took place. However whilst this change will reduce costs in schools it will increase 
High Needs costs by c £170,000.
Recommendation
That the basis for exclusion budget adjustments in secondary schools is amended in 
line with statutory guidance from September 2018 and that where necessary an 
agreement is made between the LA and academy schools for the recovery of 
charges.

Q7. Changes in High Needs Places
The changes described were generally endorsed. Comments made were that the 
number of funded places need to accurately reflect numbers and that this gives 
priority to support the most vulnerable children and young people.
Others commented on the need to ensure children are correctly placed and 
highlighted that they felt there were increasing needs that were having to be met in 
mainstream due to specialist provision being full. In light of this it was felt that if 
additional places were to be created then it had to cater for these needs. Schools 
endorsed removing any surplus places at the same time as increasing provision.
Recommendation
That the place changes described are agreed and implemented from September 
2018.

       Q8a Redesign of SEN support – Clinical Psychology Intervention Team
This proposal was supported by most schools, although a number chose not to 
answer. The comments made were that a central team would be better than a 

Page 24



resource in each school and that secondary schools would also want to access this 
support. A few responses felt the impact of outreach in schools was marginal and 
that it needs a significant level of school resources to deliver this approach.
Recommendation
That SEN support is redesigned to create a Clinical Psychology team.

        Q8b Use of Element 2 funding to support Hearing and Vision support and 
the introduction of a traded service

2/3rds of responses agreed that Element 2 funding should be used for Hearing and 
Vision support in schools. Comments included that this would bring the funding in 
line with other areas of support in schools. Those that didn’t support the approach 
said that Hearing and Vision should be LA funded, that this is a further demand on 
school budgets  and that element 2 is already fully utilised through small group 
teaching. 
With regard to a traded service being developed, there was no clear view from the 
consultation. However this would be necessary to provide support where needed.
Recommendation
That element 2 funding in schools is taken into account for Hearing and Vision 
support from September 2018 and that a traded service is developed through the 
Forum High Needs working group.

         Q9 Services that should continue to be offered through de-delegation
There were few comments or views expressed by schools on this question. Some 
schools noted that de-delegation is helpful and supports the school budget, whilst 
another felt schools should choose the services needed themselves. They are:
- Contingency (£110,500) – for exceptional / unforeseen costs.
- Special Staff costs (£674,400) –maternity / paternity and Trade Union Facility 

time.
- School Library Service (£191,700) Primary schools
- FSM eligibility (£19,700) – handling applications for FSM’s.
- Behaviour Support (£84,200) 
- Insurance – (£29,200) costs of VA governors liability insurance (Primary only)
- School Improvement (£101,600),de-delegated for a part year from September 

2017.
Of these some minor changes are proposed - School Improvement (full year costs), 
Behaviour Support transfer and VA insurance saving.
Recommendation
That de-delegated services continue to be offered as part of the Schools Budget for 
2018-19

6. CONCULSIONS

The consultation has given useful feedback to inform the plans for the School 
Funding Formula and Budget for 2018-19.
In some High Needs areas work will be ongoing through the Forum’s High Needs 
group. Given the significance of the proposals and implications for all schools the 
membership of this group could be reviewed / expanded. 

Page 25



7. RECOMMENDATIONS

That:
7.1. Option 4, a transition and top slice, is implemented as the school funding 

formula for 2018-19.
7.2. The funding formula includes a 0% MFG in 21018-19
7.3 The unit value of the LAC element within the formula is reduced to take 

account of an increase in Pupil Premium.
7.4. Headroom is allocated evenly over all funding formula elements and that PFI 

is increased in line with the contract inflation provision
7.5a. A ½% top slice from the schools budget is approved and used to support the 

outcomes of the High needs Review
7.5b. The Forum receives an update on the review at its next meeting in January.
7.6a. The High Needs working group consider the priorities for High needs 

funding and report to the January Forum meeting
7.6b. The basis for exclusion budget adjustments in secondary schools is 

amended in line with statutory guidance from September 2018 and that where 
necessary an agreement is made between the LA and academy schools

7.7 The place changes described are agreed and implemented from 
September 2018.

7.8a. SEN support is redesigned to create a Clinical Psychology team
7.8b. Element 2 funding in schools is taken into account for Hearing and Vision 

support from September 2018 and that a traded service is developed through 
the Forum High Needs working group

7.9. De-delegated services continue to be offered as part of the Schools 
Budget for 2018-19

7.10 Forum advise on membership of the High Needs working group.

Paul Boyce
Director of Children’s Services

Page 26



Appendix 2
Schools Forum working group

9th January 2018

Attendees:

Michael Forber Lynn Ireland
Nicola Lightwing Adrian Whitely
Bernie Cassidy Lisa Ayling
Amanda Donelan Jon Bush
Kate Brown Tony Taylor
Jill Billinge Kathryn Podmore
Steve Baker Mark Bellamy
Andy Davies Andrew Roberts
Margaret Morris Shaun Allen
Richard Edwards

Funding Formula

A question was asked about what would happen if the Schools Forum cannot reach 
a decision regarding the Schools funding formula. If this was the case it is likely that 
the Schools funding formula would remain as it is now, as the Forum were unable 
express a view or advise Cabinet. The final decision however would be taken by 
Cabinet

With regard to the 0.5% top-slice from the Schools Block, without Forum agreement 
it would need approval from the Secretary of State. 

A Survey Monkey had been issued prior to Christmas to seek the views of schools 
on changes to the funding formula. Results from the survey were as follows:

Q1. For the 2018-19 budget do you support moving 0.5% of money from the Schools 
block into the High Needs block to implement the High Need review?

Yes – 31 (54%)
No – 26 (46%)

Q2. Would an alternative amount of 0.25% be more acceptable, given the review 
would be implemented part year?

Yes – 33 (60%)
No – 22 (40%)

Page 27



Q3. If neither option is supported how should High Needs and the outcome of the 
review be implemented?

22 responses were received with various comments (see attached).

Q4. If this is the case which of the remaining options would you support?

Option 1 – Introduce NFF in 2018-19 30 (68%)
Option 2 – continue with the existing Wirral formula 1 (2%)
Option 3 – transition and introduce some elements of NFF 13 (30%)

A comment was made that the consultation should have had 2 separate questions – 
one regarding the funding formula, and one regarding the top-slice. 

It was agreed that members would need to know what questions would be taken to 
Forum on 17th January in advance of head teacher meetings next week and this 
was discussed later in the meeting. 

High Needs Review

Margaret Morris summarised the report of the High Needs review, which outlined the 
changes recommended, costs of implementation, and the long-term cost reductions. 

Primary heads made the point that the processes described in the review, regardless 
of finances had been extremely well thought through and don’t reflect “just another 
review”. It was agreed that this was the first full review of high needs for a long time, 
and that we need to be creative. 

It was agreed that with this level of detail it there may have been agreement in the 
original funding consultation.

Clarification was made that the top-slice was for one year only, and would have to be 
agreed again for 2019-20.

A suggestion was made that a further review was needed into levels of top-up and 
the bandings used.  However, bands couldn’t be increased until numbers reduced. It 
was also agreed that we need to minimise pupils in the independent sector. 

It was agreed that a 0.25% would not be enough to deliver the requirement identified 
in the review, and this was agreed by all members, and so this would not be 
proposed at Forum – the question would just be whether to top-slice 0.5% or not.

Page 28



If the top-slice is agreed regular reports to Forum would be required with regards to 
the progress in implementing the recommendations. 

Funding Formula

It was agreed that no school should lose out as a result of a top-slice. If agreed the 
NFF should not be implemented locally as it would not reflect the NFF, and some 
schools could lose funding which would not be right.

Questions to be asked at Forum on 17th January 2018:

1. Do you agree with up to 0.5% top-slice to make necessary changes resulting from 
recommendations in the High Needs review?

2. 
If yes:  option 2 - current formula with 0.5% top-slice or

option 4 – transitional formula with 0.5% top-slice.

If no: option 1 – National Funding Formula
option 2 – current formula
option 3 – transitional formula.

Page 29



Page 30



Page 31



Page 32



5 Alternative School Funding Models Options with no top-slice Options with 0.5% top-slice Appendix 3

Baseline
National Funding Formula

(option 1)
Current formula, -1.5%

MFG (Option 2)

Transition Current formula
+ 0% MFG + NFF pupil

funding rates
(Option 3)

Transitition +  0.5% top-slice
transfer to High Needs

(Option 4)  

Current formula +  0.5%
top-slice transfer to High

Needs
(Option 5)  

DfE School £194,694,051 £197,758,500 Change £197,758,543 Change £197,758,529 Change £196,769,757 Change £196,769,760 Change
2000 Bedford Drive Primary School 1,416,563 1,439,000 1.58% 1,442,740 1.85% 1,433,564 1.20% 1,423,038 0.46% 1,434,950 1.30%
2001 Bidston Village CE Primary School 1,422,104 1,429,000 0.48% 1,438,898 1.18% 1,455,463 2.35% 1,455,463 2.35% 1,431,704 0.68%
2021 Woodlands Primary School 1,344,495 1,355,000 0.78% 1,364,366 1.48% 1,360,316 1.18% 1,350,445 0.44% 1,357,639 0.98%
2048 Devonshire Park Primary School 1,816,251 1,865,000 2.68% 1,851,044 1.92% 1,838,255 1.21% 1,824,497 0.45% 1,839,116 1.26%
2100 New Brighton Primary School 2,213,231 2,245,000 1.44% 2,248,122 1.58% 2,251,242 1.72% 2,251,242 1.72% 2,236,579 1.05%
2101 Mount Primary School 1,243,774 1,276,000 2.59% 1,263,315 1.57% 1,264,062 1.63% 1,257,138 1.07% 1,257,163 1.08%
2102 Liscard Primary School 2,323,853 2,389,000 2.80% 2,360,961 1.60% 2,358,366 1.49% 2,346,355 0.97% 2,348,898 1.08%
2104 St. George's Primary School 2,799,686 2,879,000 2.83% 2,856,996 2.05% 2,838,871 1.40% 2,817,371 0.63% 2,838,356 1.38%
2107 Riverside Primary School 872,126 884,000 1.36% 881,249 1.05% 891,680 2.24% 891,680 2.24% 877,085 0.57%
2108 Kingsway Primary School 586,012 588,000 0.34% 586,958 0.16% 598,198 2.08% 598,198 2.08% 586,958 0.16%
2110 Park Primary School 1,649,952 1,678,000 1.70% 1,682,368 1.96% 1,670,541 1.25% 1,658,503 0.52% 1,671,931 1.33%
2111 Somerville Primary School 2,168,644 2,201,000 1.49% 2,211,822 1.99% 2,194,933 1.21% 2,178,416 0.45% 2,197,502 1.33%
2112 Eastway Primary School 907,585 930,000 2.47% 918,657 1.22% 928,429 2.30% 928,429 2.30% 914,294 0.74%
2115 Castleway Primary School 680,963 686,000 0.74% 690,204 1.36% 690,817 1.45% 689,854 1.31% 687,041 0.89%
2116 Sandbrook Primary School 602,930 617,000 2.33% 609,463 1.08% 616,142 2.19% 616,142 2.19% 606,743 0.63%
2117 Greenleas Primary School 1,120,377 1,138,000 1.57% 1,137,918 1.57% 1,135,984 1.39% 1,127,834 0.67% 1,132,358 1.07%
2118 Lingham Primary School 1,391,928 1,430,000 2.74% 1,419,011 1.95% 1,409,121 1.24% 1,398,780 0.49% 1,410,046 1.30%
2200 Stanton Road Primary School 1,107,767 1,125,400 1.59% 1,129,175 1.93% 1,122,286 1.31% 1,114,232 0.58% 1,122,192 1.30%
2201 Woodslee Primary School 913,937 930,000 1.76% 926,820 1.41% 935,927 2.41% 935,927 2.41% 922,453 0.93%
2203 Higher Bebington Junior School 1,176,778 1,208,000 2.65% 1,199,777 1.95% 1,193,085 1.39% 1,184,540 0.66% 1,192,369 1.32%
2204 Town Lane Infant School 909,610 933,000 2.57% 925,268 1.72% 921,517 1.31% 915,100 0.60% 920,877 1.24%
2205 Grove Street Primary School 1,431,128 1,438,000 0.48% 1,433,770 0.18% 1,464,533 2.33% 1,464,533 2.33% 1,433,770 0.18%
2210 Brackenwood Junior School 877,771 897,000 2.19% 894,327 1.89% 889,107 1.29% 882,910 0.59% 888,954 1.27%
2212 Thornton Hough Primary School 643,118 659,000 2.47% 652,589 1.47% 652,948 1.53% 648,602 0.85% 649,630 1.01%
2214 Mendell Primary School 719,630 738,000 2.55% 732,643 1.81% 727,941 1.15% 723,025 0.47% 728,380 1.22%
2215 Brookhurst Primary School 767,828 787,000 2.50% 782,103 1.86% 777,899 1.31% 772,582 0.62% 777,494 1.26%
2217 Raeburn Primary School 1,377,755 1,415,000 2.70% 1,400,096 1.62% 1,412,985 2.56% 1,412,993 2.56% 1,393,140 1.12%
2218 Brackenwood Infants School 669,070 678,000 1.33% 678,893 1.47% 679,996 1.63% 679,996 1.63% 675,803 1.01%
2220 Greasby Infants School 645,006 652,000 1.08% 654,526 1.48% 654,261 1.43% 652,068 1.09% 651,569 1.02%
2221 West Kirby Primary School 953,325 978,000 2.59% 971,490 1.91% 965,998 1.33% 959,241 0.62% 965,631 1.29%
2224 Irby Primary School 758,574 778,000 2.56% 772,639 1.85% 768,434 1.30% 763,210 0.61% 768,110 1.26%
2225 Greasby Junior School 847,631 869,000 2.52% 863,629 1.89% 858,852 1.32% 852,928 0.62% 858,493 1.28%
2226 Black Horse Hill Infants School 624,105 639,000 2.39% 633,172 1.45% 633,295 1.47% 630,444 1.02% 630,323 1.00%
2227 Brookdale Primary School 762,191 781,000 2.47% 776,290 1.85% 771,897 1.27% 766,644 0.58% 771,736 1.25%
2229 Barnston Primary School 978,440 1,004,000 2.61% 996,784 1.87% 991,743 1.36% 984,779 0.65% 991,200 1.30%
2231 Poulton Lancelyn Primary School 1,310,605 1,345,900 2.69% 1,336,525 1.98% 1,328,966 1.40% 1,319,361 0.67% 1,328,198 1.34%
2232 Black Horse Hill Junior School 752,084 764,000 1.58% 765,961 1.85% 761,573 1.26% 756,394 0.57% 761,471 1.25%
2234 Great Meols Primary School 1,405,079 1,443,000 2.70% 1,427,925 1.63% 1,437,361 2.30% 1,437,361 2.30% 1,420,884 1.12%
2238 Gayton Primary School 759,733 779,000 2.54% 773,889 1.86% 769,831 1.33% 764,584 0.64% 769,340 1.26%
2244 Egremont Primary School 1,566,256 1,609,500 2.76% 1,589,531 1.49% 1,587,702 1.37% 1,585,121 1.20% 1,581,517 0.97%
2249 Portland Primary School 796,462 800,000 0.44% 810,782 1.80% 804,527 1.01% 798,973 0.32% 806,038 1.20%
2250 Heswall Primary School 785,958 806,000 2.55% 800,583 1.86% 796,247 1.31% 790,820 0.62% 795,877 1.26%
2252 Fender Primary School 1,110,855 1,118,000 0.64% 1,117,383 0.59% 1,137,111 2.36% 1,137,111 2.36% 1,113,318 0.22%

P
age 33



2254 Manor Primary School 649,795 660,000 1.57% 661,181 1.75% 656,533 1.04% 652,185 0.37% 657,411 1.17%
2255 Mersey Park Primary School 1,773,061 1,799,000 1.46% 1,799,819 1.51% 1,804,347 1.76% 1,804,347 1.76% 1,790,687 0.99%
2256 Overchurch Infants School 967,893 993,000 2.59% 982,790 1.54% 987,690 2.05% 987,690 2.05% 978,067 1.05%
2258 Rock Ferry Primary School 1,372,835 1,399,000 1.91% 1,393,086 1.48% 1,392,120 1.40% 1,392,120 1.40% 1,386,138 0.97%
2260 Woodchurch Road Primary School 1,782,781 1,811,000 1.58% 1,810,321 1.54% 1,809,842 1.52% 1,796,343 0.76% 1,801,142 1.03%
2261 Cathcart Street Primary School 1,009,441 1,014,000 0.45% 1,011,029 0.16% 1,031,560 2.19% 1,031,560 2.19% 1,011,029 0.16%
2263 Well Lane Primary School 873,218 878,000 0.55% 885,385 1.39% 892,464 2.20% 892,464 2.20% 881,181 0.91%
2264 Thingwall Primary School 733,827 752,000 2.48% 747,327 1.84% 743,162 1.27% 738,129 0.59% 742,964 1.25%
2266 Church Drive Primary School 1,160,212 1,191,000 2.65% 1,169,993 0.84% 1,188,608 2.45% 1,188,608 2.45% 1,164,395 0.36%
2268 Leasowe Primary School 900,078 924,000 2.66% 914,350 1.59% 910,108 1.11% 904,333 0.47% 910,404 1.15%
2270 Overchurch Junior School 1,314,655 1,350,000 2.69% 1,335,429 1.58% 1,338,709 1.83% 1,338,709 1.83% 1,328,808 1.08%
2274 Heygarth Primary School 1,156,876 1,183,000 2.26% 1,174,188 1.50% 1,185,895 2.51% 1,185,895 2.51% 1,168,434 1.00%
2275 Bidston Avenue Primary 1,651,004 1,697,000 2.79% 1,676,687 1.56% 1,683,401 1.96% 1,683,401 1.96% 1,668,221 1.04%
2278 Townfield Primary School 1,497,332 1,518,500 1.41% 1,521,069 1.59% 1,521,708 1.63% 1,511,126 0.92% 1,513,368 1.07%
2279 Hillside Primary School 755,947 759,000 0.40% 757,367 0.19% 772,611 2.20% 772,611 2.20% 757,367 0.19%
3009 St. Bridget's CE Primary School 1,372,779 1,420,000 3.44% 1,395,106 1.63% 1,394,126 1.56% 1,383,922 0.81% 1,388,147 1.12%
3010 Hoylake Holy Trinity CE Primary School 952,454 957,000 0.48% 970,578 1.90% 964,905 1.31% 958,123 0.60% 964,698 1.29%
3011 Christ Church CE Primary School (Birkenhead) 1,100,257 1,105,000 0.43% 1,104,980 0.43% 1,125,265 2.27% 1,125,265 2.27% 1,101,881 0.15%
3300 St. Saviour's CE Primary 840,582 862,000 2.55% 853,603 1.55% 851,679 1.32% 845,682 0.61% 849,507 1.06%
3304 Woodchurch CE Aided Primary 837,961 860,000 2.63% 853,423 1.85% 847,658 1.16% 841,680 0.44% 848,240 1.23%
3321 St. Joseph's Catholic Primary (Upton) 1,079,902 1,109,000 2.69% 1,096,486 1.54% 1,096,308 1.52% 1,090,895 1.02% 1,091,069 1.03%
3322 St. Peter's Catholic Primary (Birkenhead) 625,926 629,000 0.49% 626,838 0.15% 639,361 2.15% 639,361 2.15% 626,838 0.15%
3324 St. Paul's Catholic Primary 498,823 501,000 0.44% 499,408 0.12% 508,346 1.91% 508,346 1.91% 499,408 0.12%
3330 Ss. Peter and Paul Catholic Primary 1,037,354 1,065,000 2.67% 1,057,315 1.92% 1,050,799 1.30% 1,043,208 0.56% 1,050,734 1.29%
3331 St. Alban's Catholic Primary 1,410,759 1,450,000 2.78% 1,432,830 1.56% 1,433,384 1.60% 1,428,744 1.27% 1,425,585 1.05%
3333 St. Joseph's Catholic Primary (Wallasey) 1,041,272 1,065,000 2.28% 1,060,809 1.88% 1,052,607 1.09% 1,044,981 0.36% 1,054,197 1.24%
3335 Sacred Heart Catholic Primary School 1,425,826 1,465,000 2.75% 1,453,900 1.97% 1,444,256 1.29% 1,433,518 0.54% 1,444,590 1.32%
3337 Christchurch CE Primary (Moreton) 1,310,398 1,346,000 2.72% 1,336,059 1.96% 1,327,596 1.31% 1,317,792 0.56% 1,327,560 1.31%
3350 St. Andrew's CE Primary 760,177 780,000 2.61% 771,478 1.49% 773,878 1.80% 773,878 1.80% 767,827 1.01%
3351 Dawpool CE Primary School 732,194 751,000 2.57% 745,772 1.85% 741,965 1.33% 736,846 0.64% 741,334 1.25%
3352 St. Peter's CE Aided Primary (Heswall) 1,020,600 1,048,000 2.68% 1,036,795 1.59% 1,044,964 2.39% 1,037,426 1.65% 1,031,703 1.09%
3360 St. John's Catholic Junior School 922,033 932,000 1.08% 935,886 1.50% 936,370 1.55% 933,139 1.20% 931,342 1.01%
3361 Christ the King Catholic Primary School 1,400,018 1,439,000 2.78% 1,427,783 1.98% 1,419,185 1.37% 1,408,657 0.62% 1,418,655 1.33%
3362 St. John's Catholic Infant School 692,214 708,000 2.28% 702,221 1.45% 702,439 1.48% 698,435 0.90% 698,947 0.97%
3363 Holy Spirit Catholic & CE Primary 918,442 922,000 0.39% 919,767 0.14% 938,753 2.21% 938,753 2.21% 919,767 0.14%
3364 Our Lady of Pity Catholic Primary School 1,388,641 1,426,700 2.74% 1,411,908 1.68% 1,407,760 1.38% 1,397,353 0.63% 1,404,796 1.16%
3365 Ladymount Catholic Primary School 1,029,782 1,055,000 2.45% 1,045,755 1.55% 1,045,925 1.57% 1,043,604 1.34% 1,040,614 1.05%
3366 The Priory Parish CE Primary School 906,895 910,000 0.34% 923,278 1.81% 916,228 1.03% 909,694 0.31% 917,613 1.18%
3367 Our Lady and St Edward's Catholic Primary School 1,772,655 1,781,000 0.47% 1,775,597 0.17% 1,815,237 2.40% 1,815,237 2.40% 1,775,597 0.17%
3368 Holy Cross Catholic Primary School 747,018 750,000 0.40% 749,434 0.32% 762,931 2.13% 762,931 2.13% 748,022 0.13%
3369 St. Anne's Catholic Primary School 857,068 878,000 2.44% 871,593 1.69% 866,705 1.12% 860,572 0.41% 867,398 1.21%
3371 St. Michael & All Angels Catholic Primary School 949,646 958,000 0.88% 954,840 0.55% 974,901 2.66% 974,901 2.66% 954,840 0.55%
3372 St. Werburgh's Catholic Primary School 844,734 867,000 2.64% 848,846 0.49% 863,882 2.27% 863,882 2.27% 846,088 0.16%
3373 St. Joseph's Catholic Primary School (B'head) 1,341,655 1,379,000 2.78% 1,368,081 1.97% 1,359,529 1.33% 1,349,473 0.58% 1,359,363 1.32%

Baseline
National Funding Formula

(option 1)
Current formula, -1.5%

MFG (Option 2)

Transition Current formula
+ 0% MFG + NFF pupil

funding rates
(Option 3)

Transitition +  0.5% top-slice
transfer to High Needs

(Option 4)  

Current formula +  0.5%
top-slice transfer to High

Needs
(Option 5)  

DfE School £194,694,051 £197,758,500 Change £197,758,543 Change £197,758,529 Change £196,769,757 Change £196,769,760 Change

P
age 34



3374 Prenton Primary School 1,404,437 1,439,000 2.46% 1,426,822 1.59% 1,427,783 1.66% 1,419,378 1.06% 1,419,714 1.09%
3375 Millfields CE Primary School 728,705 732,000 0.45% 730,068 0.19% 744,932 2.23% 744,932 2.23% 730,068 0.19%
3376 Pensby Primary School 910,844 915,000 0.46% 924,714 1.52% 924,251 1.47% 924,251 1.47% 920,653 1.08%
4000 The Kingsway Academy 2,504,675 2,517,100 0.50% 2,554,463 1.99% 2,531,556 1.07% 2,513,815 0.36% 2,539,737 1.40%
4010 Prenton High School for Girls 4,346,205 4,380,200 0.78% 4,416,918 1.63% 4,416,871 1.63% 4,395,152 1.13% 4,395,198 1.13%
4012 Woodchurch High School 7,771,019 7,809,100 0.49% 7,897,061 1.62% 7,896,745 1.62% 7,842,809 0.92% 7,854,947 1.08%
4018 Ridgeway High School 3,700,476 3,746,000 1.23% 3,758,638 1.57% 3,759,477 1.59% 3,738,078 1.02% 3,738,749 1.03%
4052 Wirral Grammar School for Girls 4,481,133 4,617,800 3.05% 4,557,878 1.71% 4,538,134 1.27% 4,505,711 0.55% 4,535,800 1.22%
4056 West Kirby Grammar School for Girls 4,107,894 4,227,200 2.90% 4,178,041 1.71% 4,172,823 1.58% 4,140,316 0.79% 4,155,985 1.17%
4058 Pensby High School 3,631,861 3,649,000 0.47% 3,706,238 2.05% 3,672,063 1.11% 3,644,988 0.36% 3,682,764 1.40%
4060 Hilbre High School 5,021,883 5,055,500 0.67% 5,122,257 2.00% 5,078,989 1.14% 5,042,257 0.41% 5,092,942 1.41%
4066 Mosslands School 4,067,236 4,086,000 0.46% 4,132,897 1.61% 4,126,990 1.47% 4,095,979 0.71% 4,111,853 1.10%
4067 Oldershaw School 3,083,602 3,098,400 0.48% 3,131,074 1.54% 3,133,499 1.62% 3,133,499 1.62% 3,114,703 1.01%
4069 Weatherhead School 6,797,394 6,851,800 0.80% 6,909,601 1.65% 6,907,729 1.62% 6,891,612 1.39% 6,875,643 1.15%
4070 Bebington High School 5,494,743 5,528,000 0.61% 5,582,051 1.59% 5,582,091 1.59% 5,568,438 1.34% 5,554,285 1.08%
4071 South Wirral High School 4,293,007 4,327,000 0.79% 4,363,166 1.63% 4,343,803 1.18% 4,312,332 0.45% 4,341,730 1.13%
4605 St. John Plessington Catholic College 6,415,416 6,446,900 0.49% 6,520,545 1.64% 6,517,929 1.60% 6,469,723 0.85% 6,485,864 1.10%
4611 St. Mary's RC College 6,837,386 6,870,900 0.49% 6,946,772 1.60% 6,943,796 1.56% 6,902,052 0.95% 6,909,708 1.06%
4798 The Birkenhead Park School 3,627,640 3,680,500 1.46% 3,652,330 0.68% 3,711,118 2.30% 3,711,118 2.30% 3,641,198 0.37%
5400 Calday Grange Grammar School 4,392,167 4,520,200 2.92% 4,467,369 1.71% 4,469,726 1.77% 4,434,788 0.97% 4,443,707 1.17%
5401 Wirral Grammar School for Boys 3,735,770 3,834,200 2.63% 3,799,208 1.70% 3,784,546 1.31% 3,755,138 0.52% 3,779,200 1.16%
5900 St. Anselm's College 3,341,704 3,398,800 1.71% 3,398,030 1.69% 3,386,048 1.33% 3,359,848 0.54% 3,380,210 1.15%
5901 Upton Hall School 3,480,393 3,568,000 2.52% 3,539,295 1.69% 3,540,752 1.73% 3,522,193 1.20% 3,520,768 1.16%
6905 Birkenhead High School Academy 3,890,275 3,908,900 0.48% 3,962,058 1.85% 3,939,174 1.26% 3,908,670 0.47% 3,941,228 1.31%

Baseline
National Funding Formula

(option 1)
Current formula, -1.5%

MFG (Option 2)

Transition Current formula
+ 0% MFG + NFF pupil

funding rates
(Option 3)

Transitition +  0.5% top-slice
transfer to High Needs

(Option 4)  

Current formula +  0.5%
top-slice transfer to High

Needs
(Option 5)  

DfE School £194,694,051 £197,758,500 Change £197,758,543 Change £197,758,529 Change £196,769,757 Change £196,769,760 Change

P
age 35



T
his page is intentionally left blank



WIRRAL COUNCIL

SCHOOLS FORUM – 18th JANUARY 2018

REPORT OF THE DIRECTOR OF CHILDREN’S SERVICES

SCHOOLS BUDGET 2018-19

1.0 EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

1.1 The purpose of this report is to outline the Schools Budget for 2018-19 so that 
Forum can indicate their views on the proposals outlined. The report describes the 
financial changes to be considered by Schools Forum and Cabinet. The proposed 
budget totals £259,147,600 for Early Years, Maintained Schools, Academies, 
colleges, and providers for the upcoming year. 

2.0 BACKGROUND AND KEY ISSUES

2.1 The Schools Funding Allocations were issued by the Department for Education on 
19th December 2017. The format of the Dedicated Schools Grant (DSG) is 
changing in that 2018-19 will see the introduction of the National Funding Formula 
for Schools and High Needs following a lengthy discussion period and 2 national 
consultations. 

In summary the main changes to DSG in 2018-19 are as follows:
- There will now be 4 funding blocks within DSG, with a new Central Schools 
Services Block alongside the existing Schools, High Needs and Early Years 
blocks. 
- The National Funding Formula for Schools and High Needs will be introduced 
from April 2018, following their deferral from April 2017. This will be a ‘soft’ formula 
for 2 years, with the expectation of a ‘hard’ formula from 2020-21.
- The Schools block will be ring-fenced with limited flexibility to transfer up to 0.5% 
of the schools block to High Needs with Schools Forum approval.
- The Early Years block will include a full years funding for the 15 hour extension 
for working parents, which was introduced from September 17 and so only 
included a part year effect in 2017-18. 
- The High Needs block will increase from £34m to £35m, an increase of £1m.
- A flexible Minimum Funding Guarantee (MFG) has been introduced to give Local 
Authorities discretion over the level of MFG in their local formula of up to +0.5%.

3.0 GRANT FUNDING

3.1 Pupil Premium

In addition to DSG Pupil Premium provides funding targeted towards deprivation.  
Now in its eighth year rates remain largely unchanged, with the exception of Pupil 
Premium Plus for previously looked after children. 2018-19 rates are as follows:

- For pupils who are or have previously been eligible for Free School Meals (FSM) 
in the last 6 years, rates are as follows: 

- Early Years £302.10 pa for 3 & 4 year old children from low income families.
- Primary school £1,320 pa
- Secondary school £935 pa Page 37

Agenda Item 6



- The rate for each Looked After Child or child that has been adopted since 
December 2005 has increased from £1,900 to £2,300.
- Each child of a parent in the Armed Forces £300.

Final allocations will be based on data collected in the January census for current 
numbers of FSM’s (and those over the previous 5 years) and LAC Census data 
collected in March 2018.

The work undertaken to maximise FSM take up, including the opt-out initiative 
helps to maximise numbers and therefore the funding received in schools. In 
October 2017 there were 8,274 Free School Meals recorded compared to 7,314 in 
October 2015 (13% increase).

3.2 Other Grant Funding

- The grant for Universal Infant Free School Meals will remain at a meal rate of 
£2.30 per meal for the 2018-19 academic year.

- The latest indications are that the SEND Implementation Grant, for which Wirral 
received £217k in 2017-18, will continue in 2018-19 although allocations are still to 
be confirmed. 

- The funding for Primary PE and Sport Premium, Year 7 Catch-up Premium, and 
Extended Rights to Home to School Transport will continue in 2018-19.

- From September 2017 the transitional support for the Education Services Grant 
(ESG) ceased. The amount previously allocated for ESG Retained Duties (£730k 
for Wirral) was transferred into DSG in 2017-18 and is part of the Central Schools 
Services Block of DSG in 2018-19. 

There is no replacement funding for the former General Duties rate of ESG. As 
described at September forum this results in an increased de-delegation 
requirement for education services to maintained schools that were previously 
funded by this grant (School Improvement, Premature Retirement Costs and other 
statutory duties). De-delegation of budgets from maintained schools for former 
ESG general duties is considered elsewhere on this agenda.

3.3 Dedicated Schools Grant

3.3.1 From April 2018 DSG is made up of 4 blocks with the addition of a Central 
Schools Services Block. There are now greater restrictions on moving funding 
between the blocks, as described above. The blocks indicate the level of 
expenditure anticipated in each budget area. The initial allocation for 2018-19 
indicates a £5m increase (excluding Early Years) which is an overall increase of 
2.2%. The budgets presented have not top sliced block allocations. This will be 
discussed elsewhere on the agenda.

3.3.2 The allocations for the Schools and Central Schools funding blocks have been 
updated for changes in pupil numbers.  Pupil numbers are those recorded in the 
October 2017 census, and have changed as follows:

Pupil Numbers Primary Secondary TotalPage 38



October 16 census 25,959 17,289 43,248
October 17 census 25,944 17,470 43,414
(Decrease/Increase) (15) 181 166

The primary roll is static having grown for the last 6 years. There has been a 
reduction in Early Years (3 and 4 year olds) of 5% resulting from a falling birth 
rate. This will now start to go through the primary sector.

3.3.3 Early Years funding is based on a combination of the census in January 2018 
and January 2019. The dates for the Early Years Census mean that the exact 
DSG will not be finalised until June 2019. The grant used for the budget are 
based on the current indicative figures (using the January 2017 census) and any 
known or anticipated changes after this date e.g. for increasing take up of the 15 
hour extended offer.

3.3.4 The High Needs Block provides resources to fund high needs students aged 0 – 
24, including the Hospital School. Additional funding has been provided to meet 
growing needs across all authorities. For Wirral an adjusted amount of £800k 
has been included for this. Growth can be used flexibly to make adjustments 
locally to high needs places as well as to the top ups provided. A number of 
changes are described later in this report.

DfE have transferred £1.16m from the DSG baseline on High Needs block to 
Schools block. Core per-pupil funding for pupils in special units and resourced 
provision in mainstream schools will in future be funded from the schools block 
(rather than the high needs block). This means the amount paid per place will 
change and will reduce from £10k to £6k. The resulting transfer of expenditure 
totals £872k. However, the funding in the High Needs block has been increased 
to offset this difference, leaving the overall increase in the High Needs block at 
the £0.8m previously reported to Forum.

3.3.5 The Blocks in their current format can be summarised as follows:

3.3.6 Schools Block £198.6m 

Adjusted 
Baseline Allocation Change Change Per 

PupilBlock
     £        £      £      %      %

Schools Block 194,430,946 198,653,459 4,222,513 2.20% 1.60%
Early Years 19,046,337 20,923,922 1,877,585 9.90%
Additional Early 
Years estimate  1,178,878   

High Needs 34,290,200 35,157,483 867,283 2.50%

Central Schools 2,217,100 2,254,517 37,417 1.70%

Total 258,168,259

Page 39



This funding covers the delegated budgets to primary and secondary schools 
and academies only. Funding previously included in the schools block for 
budgets that are managed centrally on behalf of schools has now been 
transferred into the new Central Schools Services Block. 

3.3.7 Early Years Block £22.1m

This Block funds the costs of Early Years Education for 2, 3 and 4 year old 
children in schools, nurseries and private voluntary and independent providers 
for both the universal and extended entitlement. Most of this funding is directed 
through the Early Years Single Funding Formula (EYSFF).

There are small elements covering SEN costs and some central Early Years 
support costs. Amounts held centrally are within the new nationally defined limits 
of 5%.

3.3.8 High Needs Block £35.2m

The make-up of this block is complex. It is based on the “place plus” funding 
system introduced by the DfE in April 2013 and includes:
 Special schools (pre and post 16), and non-maintained special schools, both 

of which receive a base level funding of £10,000 per place.
 School bases which receive £6,000 per place, reduced from £10,000 from 

April 2018, the difference being transferred into the schools block.
 Alternative Provision Bases and Emslie Morgan Academy funding of £10,000 

per place.
 Place funding in Wirral’s FE provision at Wirral Met College and Birkenhead 

6th Form College of £6,000 per place.
 Additional funding over and above that provided for places in the form of “top 

ups” provided on a per pupil basis. The top up, or “plus” element of funding, 
takes account of the agreed assessed needs of pupils and is paid by the 
“commissioner” responsible; this may be Wirral Children’s Services, a school 
or another Local Authority. Wirral’s top up system uses 5 bands to allocate 
funding across special schools, resourced bases and alternative provision. 
Non-maintained Special Schools also receive a top up.

 The costs of Top Ups for all education and training for post 16 specialist 
provision for Learners with Learning Difficulties or Disabilities (LLDD) in 
colleges and private providers.

 The Hospital Schools budget.
 The cost of placements in Independent Special Schools.
 The costs of Education, Health and Care Plans / Statements.
 The central provision of SEN support.

3.3.9 Central School Services Block £2.3m

This block is introduced from April 2018 as part of the National Funding Formula, 
and provides funding for LAs to carry out central functions on behalf of pupils in 
state-funded maintained schools and academies in England. Funding previously 
allocated to LAs for Education Services Grant (ESG) retained duties is included 
within this block, together with funding for historic commitments. The funding for 
ongoing responsibilities includes:
 Contribution to combined budgets
 Schools budget retirement costs (school closure)Page 40



 School Licenses
 Admissions
 Schools Forum
 Former ESG retained duties
 Capital Expenditure from Revenue (PFI costs)
The treatment of these budgets, which are considered in further detail later in this 
report, is in accordance with national guidance. 

3.4 Academies

Currently there are 16 secondary academies, 6 primary academies and 1 
Alternative Provision Academy – Emslie Morgan. Academies are independent 
from the local authority and are funded directly from the EFA, however 
Regulations require Wirral to continue to calculate their budgets which are 
deducted from Wirral’s DSG. The total grant reduction for Wirral is estimated to 
be £84m in 2018-19.

3.5 Minimum Funding Guarantee (MFG)

The National Funding Formula provides a minimum 0.5% cash increase in pupil 
led funding in 2018-19 for every school compared with their baselines. Local 
Authorities now have discretion over the level of MFG in their local formula as 
part of the ‘soft’ formula. LAs are able to apply MFG of between minus 1.5% and 
0.5% per pupil to protect schools from large formula changes, but giving 
Authorities the flexibility to move towards the National Funding Formula whilst 
reflecting local circumstances where necessary. 

It is expected that this arrangement will continue in 2019-20, with a further 0.5% 
cash increase per pupil. 

The schools budget proposes a MFG of 0% for Wirral schools in 2018-19, which 
will provide additional protection and stability in funding. A 0% MFG ensures that 
no school can lose pupil funding unless there is a reduction in pupil numbers and 
enables more funding to be directed through the funding formula.

3.6 2018-19 Budget changes

3.6.1 Proposed 2018-19 Schools Budget savings

There are no specific budget savings proposed as part of this Schools Budget 
report. However the Council continues to face significant pressures and will need 
to identify cost reductions totalling £132m by 2021, of which £61m are in respect 
of 2018-19.

Some of these reductions will have a bearing on the level of support and 
services across the Council, and provided to schools. None however are directly 
funded by the Schools Budget. Planned reductions are summarised in 3 themes 
– Delivering Differently, Income and Resources and Service Changes and 
include a reduction in senior management, parking charges at coastal locations, 
and increased garden waste subscriptions. Final decisions will be taken at 
Budget Cabinet on 19th February 2018.

3.6.2 Primary, Secondary and Academy Budgets £198.6mPage 41



The significant changes within this area are:
 There is a net increase in school rolls, which results in an overall budget 

increase of £0.8m. There are 166 more pupils on roll in October 2017 
compared to October 2016. Primary numbers have reduced by 15 from 
25,959 to 25,944 (a 0.06% reduction) while Secondary numbers have 
increased by 181 from 17,289 to 17,470 (a 1.05% increase).

 There has been an increase in Business Rates payable of £97k resulting 
from inflation and the unwinding of transitional relief following last year’s rates 
revaluation exercise.

 Reserve funding of £380k which has previously supported the schools budget 
is not included.. 

 The PFI Affordability Gap delegated to schools has been increased by the 
estimated cost of inflation - £95,000. 

 £872k has been transferred for high needs places in special units attached to 
mainstream schools from the high needs block to the schools block, in line 
with the changes set out in the national funding formula consultation. This is 
based on £4k per place with the HN place reducing from £10k to £6k. In 
calculating baselines, DfE based this on an average per pupil funding giving 
an additional £292k to the schools baseline. 

 There is Headroom within the budget, which arises from a difference in the 
pupil funding received in DSG and the funding allocated within the ISB. This 
totals £3.2m (1.6%) and has been split proportionately between primary and 
secondary budgets.

3.6.3 6th Form Funding

The Schools Budget includes funding for High Needs students in 6th Forms. All 
other post 16 funding is through the National Formula. 

The National Funding Formula for 6th Forms is based on lagged learner numbers 
to which an unchanged national rate of £4,000 is applied for each student aged 
16 to 17. Formula Protection Funding (FPF), introduced in 2013-14 to protect 
institutions from significant decreases in funding resulting from the funding per 
student, will remain payable until 2020-21. The funding per student rate is 
weighted for student retention and study programme costs. There is an additional 
amount for disadvantage. 

Maths and English GCSEs are considered essential qualifications for further or 
higher education and employment. As a condition of funding, students who have 
not achieved A*-C or equivalent in these subjects by age 16 will be expected to 
continue to study towards achieving them as part of their 16 to 19 study 
programme. 

Additional payments will be implemented to institutions for any additional 
students starting a level 3 maths qualification in 2018-19, with payment made in 
academic year 2019-20. 

3.6.4 High Needs Places £15.2m

Places in specialist provision within Local Authority areas continue to be 
determined by each LA in consultation with schools and providers. There is 
flexibility to make adjustments so that places more broadly reflect take up by 
pupils and some place changes have been included in the budget. Page 42



Whilst there are in some schools pupils in excess of places in 2017-18 no clear 
trend has been identified. Therefore, with the exception of Further Education, the 
only changes are those agreed as part of the 2017-18 budget:

Full Year Effect of changes made in 2017-18 
- Claremount increase by 12 places to 216
- Townfield ERP increase by 1 place to 11
- Hilbre ERP increase by 15 places to 30
- Kingsway Academy ERP closure and reduce by 20 places
- Birkenhead Park closure and reduce by 10 places
- Emslie Morgan AP increase by 20 places to 100
- Birkenhead 6th Form College increase by 5 places to 65
- Wirral Met College increase by 45 places to 117

Changes from September 2018
- Birkenhead 6th Form College reduce by 8 places to 57
- Wirral Met College increase by 2 places to 119

No changes are proposed for the Hospital school. Provision has been made 
however to recover the place funding for a pupil residing in a Welsh Authority.

3.6.5 Early Years £21.1m

Early Years funding for 2018-19 will be based on census counts in January 2018 
(5/12ths) and January 2019 (7/12ths).

Take up of the 2 year old offer has increased during the year, and is currently 
92% of eligible children. Latest DfE estimates (November 2017) indicate that 
1,261 children are eligible for 2 year old funding in Wirral, with a take-up target of 
95% in 2018-19. Estimate DSG and expenditure budgets are therefore based on 
these numbers.

For 3 and 4 year olds the base rate in the local funding formula will increase by 
£0.08 to £3.68 from April 2018 as approved at December’s Schools Forum, and 
provision for this has been included in the budget. This reflects the DfE 
requirement for Local Authorities to pass 95% of their three and four year old 
funding from Central Government to early years providers, increased from 93%.

The January 17 census showed a falling roll for 3 and 4 years olds compared to 
the January 16 census, mirroring a drop in birth rates for the related period. At 
this time it has been assumed that there will be no change in the January 18 
census, although this will be kept under review. 

Pupil numbers January 2016 January 2017 Change
2 year olds (FTE) 667 739 72
3/4 year olds (FTE) 3116 2960 (156)

2018-19 will be the first full year of the extended offer of an additional 15 hours 
for working parents. In Autumn 17, the first term of the extended offer, 290,000 
extended hours, 37% of the Universal hours claimed. Accounting for DfE’s 
estimate that this proportion will ultimately be 60%, the 2018-19 budget is based 

Page 43



on take incrementally increasing throughout the year with extended hours 
claimed in Spring 19 estimated to be 50% of universal hours claimed. 

Disability Access Fund moves into its 2nd year following its introduction in April 
2017. Take up has been slow in 2017-18. Assumed expenditure in 2018-19 will 
reflect DfE estimates.

3.6.6 SEN Top-ups £18.4m

The proposed budget for SEN Top-ups is £18.4m. There is an increase/growth 
within the High Needs DSG block of £0.8m as outlined above. The increase in 
funding and corresponding budget pressures were discussed at a meeting of the 
Schools Forum High Needs working group on 9th January 2018, the minutes of 
which are included in appendix 3. The additional funding has been allocated to 
High Needs budgets as shown in the following table:

Original 
Proposals

£

Revised 
Proposals

£
DSG:
Adjusted baseline 34,290,200
Allocation 35,157,500
Change 867,300

Commitments
FYE of place changes agreed in 2017-18 109,000 109,000
Home Tuition 50,000 50,000
Excluded Pupils – Financial regulations 100,000 100,000
Cease funding from Reserves 188,900 188,900
Funding for AP 60,000 60,000

507,900 507,900
Additional Demands
Top Ups in schools and NMSS (net) 306,400
IPFA / EHCP increased numbers 85,500
Reduced contingency (32,500)

359,400
Priorities
Inflation 0.5% across HN budgets 150,000
Increase places where numbers are 
exceeded

220,000

Increase Top Ups  - CLD / SEMH in Schools 140,000
                              - CLD / SEMH in Bases 120,000
Increase Top Ups AP 50,000

680,000 0
Total 1,187,900 867,300

The following changes have been identified as part of the budget review:
 Statements £4.3m – a net increase of £106,000 reflecting the increased 

number/cost of EHCPs/IPFAs for Primary pupils. 
 Special Schools £6.93m – special school top-ups budgets are under 

increasing pressure, and budget has increased by £464,000 due to a 
combination of increased numbers and greater needs moving towards higher Page 44



top-up bands. An income budget of £65k is included for the recovery of top-
up expenditure for pupils in Wirral schools residing in other Authorities.

 Independent Special Schools £3.7m – this budget has been reduced by 
£70,000. The budget is based on a demand for 84 students (numbers in 
place in the autumn 17 term) at an average cost of £45k. 

 SEN Units £724k – the budget has increased by £20,000 due to small 
changes in numbers.

 Home Tuition £399k – this budget has been increased by £50,000 as 
previously agreed to ensure the service can meet its statutory requirements.  

 Nursing Support £107k – there has been a reduction of £20,500, which 
reflects the estimated requirement of 6 pupils needing support in 2018-19 at a 
full year cost of £17,766 per pupil. 

 Contingency £282k – this budget has been reduced to relieve pressures 
elsewhere in the High Needs budget. The contingency budget of £281,500 
covers the potential cost of:
- The 90% guarantee to maintained schools to limit the demands on low cost 
high incidence SEN budgets used to support statements. 
- Any unforeseen consequences arising from top-ups, places, or exceptional 
cases.

The High Needs budget is thought to be sufficient at this time taking account of 
the known commitments in the current year. However despite additional funding 
in the High Needs block there is still very little flexibility, and budgets will need to 
be closely monitored.

3.6.7 Use of Reserves

DSG reserves held total £1.9m, and were agreed as part of the year end 
accounts for 2017-18. The Schools Budget for 2017-18 is likely to use £0.6m of 
these as budgeted, leaving £1.3m. £0.65m of this is reserved for the costs of pay 
harmonisation, with small amounts being held for Early Years and the remaining 
closure costs of City Learning Centres. It is proposed that any remaining DSG 
reserves at year end are used as a contingency for High Needs pressures in 
future years.

4.0 CENTRAL SCHOOL SERVICES

4.1 As in previous years the budgets held for Contingency, Special Staff (maternity 
and trade union duties), the School Library Service, Insurance (Governors 
Aided), Behaviour Support, and FSM Eligibility have been delegated to schools, 
and a decision will be required for any de-delegation from existing school 
budgets for these services. 

A decision will also be required for de-delegation of costs associated with former 
General Duties of the Education Services Grant (as reported to Schools Forum 
in September 2017) and School Improvement. These were de-delegated for the 
first time from September 2017 (part year). De-delegation will therefore increase 
for these areas as described later in this report.

4.2 The centrally held budgets for 2018-19, mainly funded by the new Central 
Schools Services Block include:
 The continuing premature retirement of teachers and staff that have arisen 

from closing schools (£60,000, unchanged from 2017-18).
Page 45



 The cost of licenses for copyright and music in all schools and academies 
resulting from a national agreement (£233,100, an increase of £7,000).

 School Admissions (£372,200, and increase of £30,400).
 Contributions to combined budgets (£875,600, unchanged from 2017-18).
 Schools Forum (£10,600, unchanged from 2017-18).
 Early Years (£518,700, funded from the Early Years block and unchanged 

from 2017-18).
 Retained duties of the former Education Services Grant (ESG) (£730,000, 

unchanged from 2017-18).
 The Authority’s contribution to the PFI Affordability Gap (£952,400, an 

increase of £215,900, funded by the LA).

4.3 School Admissions (£372,200)

This budget is required to meet the costs of supporting and administering the 
authority’s school admissions process (including the 11 plus). This budget has 
increased by £30,400 to support managed moves.

4.4 School Copyright licenses (£233,100)

The DfE purchases a single national licence for all state funded schools. 
Licences cover areas such as the Copyright Licence Agency, the Education 
Recording Agency, a School Printed Music Licence and the Performing Rights 
Society.

4.5 Contributions to combined budgets (£875,600, unchanged)

School Funding Regulations continue to allow contributions to support services 
that would otherwise fall outside the Schools Budget. These budgets combine 
with other council resources for the educational benefit of children.

There must be no new commitments or increases in expenditure from that 
agreed in 2012-13, and DfE expect that these costs will unwind over time. These 
contributions are as follows:

- Discretionary Rate Relief (£106,000)
This budget funds continuing costs for Discretionary Rate Relief in Voluntary
Aided schools.

- School Improvement (£330,000)
This budget supports the continuing funding for School Improvement staff with 
permanent contracts.

- Local Safeguarding Children’s Board (£30,000)
The LSCB provides governance of child protection arrangements, undertakes 
serious case reviews, training and employs a Designated Officer for 
Allegations. The Board is funded from partner organisations including Social 
Care, Schools, Police, Health and Probation. The £30,000 contribution from the 
Central Schools Budget is similar to the contribution received from Health. 
There is also a £10,000 contribution similar to this from the High Needs Budget.

- School Intervention (£136,000)
This budget supports the continuing funding for the consultant Headteacher role 
supporting primary and secondary schools. Page 46



- PFI – City Learning Centres (£68,500)
The 3 City Learning Centres closed in summer 2016 after which budgets for 
running costs were delegated to schools. There is an ongoing requirement to 
fund PFI costs for 2 of the 3 buildings. Provision has been made within the 
council for some costs (£118,400) and also the Home Tuition Service 
(£40,000). This residual budget is required until a more lasting solution is found.

- PFI Support (£61,800)
A small team within Asset Management manages the PFI contract on behalf of
the Council and provides support / advice to PFI schools. This budget provides
part of the funding needed to support the ongoing contract management.

- LACES (£140,500)
The service reviews the educational progress of Looked After Children, 
provides training to staff and some direct support to pupils. 

Combined budget summary £
Discretionary Rate Relief 106,600
School Improvement 330,000
LSCB 30,000
School Intervention 136,000
PFI – CLCs 68,500
LACES 140,500
PFI Support Team 61,800
Governors Forum 2,200
Total 875,600

4.6 Education Services Grant

In 2017-18 Forum agreed to de-delegate £291,600 on behalf of Maintained 
Primary, Secondary and Special Schools towards the part year costs of ESG 
General Duties from September 2017. This is to contribute to the cost of 
functions such as Internal Audit, some Asset Management costs, school 
redundancies, and other statutory duties. 

The full year cost of the former ESG General Duties for 2018-19 equates to 
£500,000, and this is considered as part of the De-delegation report elsewhere 
on the agenda. If agreed, the estimated costs of these services per the 2017-18 
Section 251 Budget Return are as follows:

Estimated cost of ESG services £
Education Welfare 377,400
Asset Management 155,200
Statutory/Regulatory duties 1,029,500
Premature retirement/redundancy 128,300
Monitoring national curriculum 
assessment

64,540

Total 1,754,940
Funded by:
School budget retained duties 730,000
General duties (de-delegation) 500,000
Council funded 524,940
Total 1,754,940Page 47



4.7 School Improvement

As with ESG general duties, this was de-delegated for the first time in 2017-18, 
the part year cost from September 17 being £101,600. This is considered 
elsewhere on the agenda.

5.0 INFLATION

5.1 Although the mainstream schools budget has received increased funding, there 
is no specific provision in the budget for pay awards. A 2% pay award for 
teaching and support staff is anticipated. The additional cost over and above any 
increase in budget allocations will need to be met from existing budgets. 

There is no general provision for price inflation, although costs for school rates 
and PFI continue to reflect RPI increases.

6.0 BUDGET TIMETABLE

6.1 The Schools Budget and advice from Forum will be considered by Cabinet at its 
budget meeting on 19th February 2018.

7.0 FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS

7.1 The budget for 2018-19 is compiled from the base budget for 2017-18 approved 
by Council on 6th March 2017 and updated for any issues identified in this report.
The projected budget (DSG, reserves and council contribution) is £259,147,600 
and is shown in Appendix 1.

8.0 RECOMMENDATIONS

8.1 That the views of Schools Forum are sought on the Schools Budget for 2018-19 
including the use of Headroom and changes within SEN and Central costs.

8.2 That Forum approves an MFG of 0% for Wirral schools in 2018-19, which will 
provide additional protection and stability in funding, and ensures that no school 
can lose pupil funding unless there is a reduction in pupil numbers.

8.3 That in accordance with ESFA guidelines the Forum approves the continuing 
Contributions to Combined Budgets of £875,600 in 2018-19 for:
- Discretionary Rate Relief top-ups
- School Improvement
- LCSB contribution
- School Intervention
- PFI CLCs
- LACES
- Governors Forum
- PFI Support Team

8.4 That uncommitted DSG reserves remaining at the end of 2017-18 are used as a 
contingency to support High Needs pressures in future years

8.5 That the Schools Budget and views of the Schools Forum be referred to the 
budget meeting of the Cabinet on 19th February 2018.

Paul Boyce
Director of Children’s Services

Page 48



Appendix 1 - Schools Budget changes 2018-19
£'000

Dedicated Schools Grant 258,168

Schools adj base budget 171,653
Add back 17-18 Academy & High Needs 79,691

251,344
Change in ISB costs
Net rising rolls 799
Rates and rents 97
Remove reserve funding (380)
PFI affordability gap increase 95
Headroom 3,232
Place funding income (10)
High Needs places 109
Early Years DAF reduction (3)
Early Years base rate increase 316
Early Years  full year extension (3/4s) 2,811
Early Years falling roll (2s) (95)

6,971
Changes in SEN / High Needs
Home Tuition increase 50
Independent Special school reduction (70)
High Needs Contingency reduction (33)
EHCPs / IPFAs - additional needs 106
Nursing support reduction (21)
Statutory exclusions 100
Alternative Provision 60
Top-up numbers/bands:
EMA (34)
Bases 20
Special Schools 465
Special Schools top-up income (65)

579
Other changes in central costs
Increase PFI contracts (inflation) 216
Increase licence and subscription chages 7
Increase Admissions (managed moves) 30

253

Total Schools Expenditure 259,148

Net Schools Budget 2018-19 Council Funded 979

Page 49



Appendix 2 - Schools Budget 2018-19
Adj Estimate 

2017-18
Base Estimate 

2018-19
Individual Schools Budget £ £
Primary 95,172,700 101,338,124
Secondary 20,884,800 97,315,376
Special 8,941,300 10,080,000
Wirral Hospital Schools 1,356,300 1,359,100
SEN Bases 1,580,000 1,468,000
Alternative Provision 0 1,000,000
6th Form / Further Education 0 1,308,000
Early Years 18,104,900 21,134,100
Individual Schools Budget Total 146,040,000 235,002,700

Central School Costs
Early Years 518,700 518,700
Admissions 341,800 372,200
School Closure / Retirement Costs 60,000 60,000
Licenses and subscriptions 226,100 233,100
Schools Forum 10,600 10,600
Contribution to combined budgets 875,600 875,600
PFI Affordability Gap 1,551,100 952,400
Retained duties (ex-ESG) 730,000 730,000

Costs delegated to / de-delegated from schools
Library service 191,700 0
Insurances 29,200 0
School Specific contingencies 100,500 0
Special Staff costs 676,400 0
School meals 19,700 0
Behaviour Support 84,200 0
School Improvement 101,600 0
General duties (ex-ESG) 291,600 0

High Needs pupils
Statements 4,174,800 4,280,800
SEN top-ups 9,175,600 9,701,400
High Needs contingency 305,100 281,500
Independent Special Schools 3,770,000 3,700,000
Home Tuition 348,900 398,900
Support for SEN 1,971,500 1,971,500
Special School Transport 58,200 58,200
Non-delegated school costs total 25,612,900 24,144,900

Total School and Central costs 171,652,900 259,147,600

Dedicated Schools Grant (170,320,500) (258,168,300)
Use of Reserves (568,900) 0
Grand Total 763,500 979,300

Page 50



Appendix 3 - Schools Forum High Needs working group

9th January 2018

Attendees:

Adrian Whitely Lisa Ayling Jon Bush
Jill Billinge Steve Baker Andre Baird
Andrew Roberts Margaret Morris Shaun Allen

This meeting was to discuss High Needs budget pressures and how to deal with them in 
2018-19. This matter is being considered outside any decision on the 0.5% top-slice from 
Schools block.

There is an extra £867k in the DSG High Needs block for 2018-19. 

It was agreed at December forum to endorse place changes identified as part of the formula 
consultation. This will be clarified at January Forum.  No place changes will be implemented 
in 2018-19 other than those agreed for post 16, since it is not clear that agreed numbers 
reflect a longer term increase and so should be left at existing numbers.

Views were sought on the 0.5% inflation added to Special Schools, Bases, Independent 
Special Schools, AP, and hospital School budgets. It was agreed that it was wrong to include 
this when mainstream schools have 0% MFG and are being asked to top-slice the Schools 
Block to support High Needs.
 
It was agreed that the budget allocated for inflation (£193k) should be used so that 
exceptional need and contingency budgets don’t need to reduce as indicated. This means the 
funding can be used with more focus rather than a broad allocation across all budgets. 

A point will be raised at January forum that further review is needed to review top-up 
bandings.

Page 51



This page is intentionally left blank



WIRRAL COUNCIL

WIRRAL SCHOOLS FORUM   17th JANUARY 2018

REPORT OF THE DIRECTOR OF CHILDREN’S SERVICES

De-Delegation of School Budgets 
_____________________________________________________________________

1.  EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

This report seeks a decision by Forum representatives of maintained schools on the 
possible de-delegation of a number of services to schools, where there is a preference 
to continue a central service.   

2.  BACKGROUND

In 2013-14 following DfE regulations a number of services were delegated to schools 
that were previously provided centrally by the LA.  There are some of these service 
areas where Schools Forum members, in their relevant phase, are able to decide, on 
behalf of their schools, that funding should be de-delegated and taken out of formula 
budgets before schools receive them.  These amounts would then continue to be held 
centrally to fund specific services for schools.  Regulations provide for different 
decisions being made for each phase. The members eligible to vote are shown on the 
attached table.

3. BUDGETS FOR DE-DELEGATION

- Contingency 
The budget for exceptional/unforeseen costs that it would be unreasonable for 
governing bodies to meet.

- Special Staff Costs 
Teacher maternity, paternity and trade union facility costs for both teaching and 
non-teaching staff.
With regard to Trade Union Facility Time of £127,500, guidance confirms that 
representatives are entitled to reasonable paid time off during working hours to 
undertake Trade Union duties and relevant training. Wirral like many LA’s has a 
local facility agreement in place. The budget for facility time includes non-teacher 
representation. Where funding is not de-delegated schools manage their own 
budget and make their own facility time arrangements.

- School Library Service 
The provision of learning resources to schools, such as books, artefacts, posters 
and DVDs.

- Insurance 
The cost of governor’s liability insurance for Aided schools. The amount to be de-
delegated is unchanged. Earlier discussions indicated that costs in this area could 

Page 53

Agenda Item 7



be provided centrally at reduced cost. However this has not been taken up as most 
insurance is arranged through the diocese.

- Free School Meal (FSM) Eligibility 
The cost of administering the applications for FSMs 

- Behaviour Support 
The cost of a small team working with Primary Schools and a number of embedded 
police in Wirral’s secondary and special schools.

- School Improvement
School Improvement was included as a de-delegated service from September 2017 
following the withdrawal of ESG. The budget supports the improvement / 
intervention programme with schools and has been increased for full year costs. 

- Former ESG General Duties 
These are the cost of education services previously funded from ESG to support 
maintained schools, including asset management (landlord) responsibilities, some 
premature retirement costs and statutory / regulatory costs around, finance, LMS 
and internal audit. These have also been increased for full year costs. 

4. DECISIONS TAKEN IN 2017-18

In the January 2017 meeting members of the forum made the following decisions:-

 The Primary Forum Representatives agreed de-delegate all of the budget areas.
 The Primary Forum Representatives agreed a contribution to former ESG costs 

for General Duties of £217,761.
 The Secondary Forum Representatives agreed to de-delegate Contingency, 

Special Staff costs (Maternity/Paternity), School Improvement, FSM Eligibility 
and Behavior Support.
The Representatives did not agree to de-delegate Insurance.

 The Secondary Forum Representatives agreed a contribution to former ESG 
costs for General Duties of £32,373.

 The Special schools forum Representatives agreed a contribution to former ESG 
costs for General Duties of £41,466.

  
5. SUMMARY OF BUDGETS FOR DE-DELEGATION

The tables below identify the budget for primary and secondary schools, how the budget 
is allocated through the formula and the amount per pupil to be deducted if it is de-
delegated.

Primary Budget Amount 
Delegated £

Method of 
Delegation

Amount 
per Pupil 

£

Average per 
School £

(300 pupils)
Contingency 94,370 Pupil 3.63 1,089
Special Staff Costs 
(Maternity/Paternity)

519,485 Pupil 19.99 5,997

Special Staff Costs 
(Trade Union)

76,883 Pupil 3.00 900

School Library Service 202,106 Pupil 7.78 2,334
Page 54



Insurance 30,753 Pupil 1.18 354
FSM Eligibility 16,281 FSM 3.11 933
Behaviour Support 62,712 SEN PA 13.77 4,131
School Improvement 150,507 Pupil 5.79 1,737
Total 1,153,097 17,475

Secondary Budget Amount 
Delegated 

£

Method of 
Delegation

Amount 
per Pupil 

£

Average per 
School £

(1,000 pupils)
Contingency 51,858 Pupil 2.98 2,980
Special Staff Costs
(Maternity/Paternity)

471,446 Pupil 27.11 27,110

Special Staff Costs
(Trade Union)

51,255 Pupil 3.00 3,000

Insurance 10,553 Pupil 0.61 610
FSM Eligibility 12,965 FSM 4.31 4,310
Behaviour Support 77,888 SEN PA 22.09 22,090
School Improvement 143,993 Pupil 8.28 8,280
Total 819,956 68,380

Ex Education Services Grant (ESG) - General Duties

Primary and 
Secondary 
Budget

Amount Method Amount
per 

Pupil £

Primary
Average £
(300 pupils)

Secondary
Average £
(1000 pupils)

ESG General 
Duties

428,899 Pupil- 
Maintained 

Schools 
only

15.86 4,758 15,860

ESG General 
Duties- Special 
School 
Contribution

71,101

Total 500,000

RECOMMENDATIONS

1. The Primary Forum Representatives agree to de-delegate each of the following 
budgets for the financial year 2018-19:-

a. Contingency
b. Special Staff Costs
c. School Library Service
d. Insurance
e. School Improvement
f. MEAS
g. FSM eligibility
h. Behaviour support

Page 55



2. The Primary Forum Representatives agree a contribution to former Education 
Services Grant costs of £368,846.

3. The Secondary Forum Representatives agree to de-delegate each of the following 
budgets for the financial year 2018-19:-

a. Contingency
b. Special Staff Costs
c. Insurance
d. School Improvement
e. MEAS
f. FSM eligibility
g. Behaviour support

4. The Secondary Forum Representatives agree a contribution to former Education 
Services Grant costs of £60,053.

5. The Special School Forum Representatives agree a contribution to former Education 
Services Grant costs of £71,101.

Paul Boyce
Director of Children’s Services

Page 56



Appendix 1

Forum Members Eligible to Vote

Primary Representatives
Jill Billinge Primary Headteacher (Birkenhead South)
Nikki Lightwing Primary Headteacher (Birkenhead North)
Bernie Cassidy Primary Headteacher (Wallasey)
Kate Brown Primary Headteacher (Deeside)
Viv Woods Primary Headteacher (Beb/Brom)
Dave Spencer Primary Governor
Tim Kelly Primary Governor
Lynn Ireland Primary Governor

Secondary Representatives
Tony Taylor Secondary Headteacher
Adrian Whiteley Secondary Governor (Chair)

Special Representatives
Steve Baker Special Headteacher
Ben Chadwick Special Governor 

Page 57



This page is intentionally left blank



WIRRAL COUNCIL

SCHOOLS FORUM – 17th JANUARY 2018

REPORT OF THE DIRECTOR OF CHILDREN’S SERVICES

SCHOOLS BUDGET MONITORING REPORT 2017/18

1.0 EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

1.1 The purpose of this report is to update the Forum on the Schools Budget position 
and anticipated variations in the current year. There is an estimated underspend of 
£275,600 at quarter 3.

2.0 ANTICIPATED BUDGET VARIATIONS

2.1 The table attached summarises the Schools Budget for 2017-18. The main 
variations, as well as comments on specific budget areas, are set out below. 

2.2 Primary, Secondary and Special Schools
Four Primary Schools – Egremont, Great Meols, Poulton Lancelyn, and Stanton 
Road - converted to Academy status as part of a Multi-Academy Trust from 1st 
June 2017. No further conversions are anticipated this year. 

Schools converting to Academy status result in a reduction in DSG grant income 
received, which is matched by reduced spending through the delegated budget. 
Budgets for the schools will be adjusted accordingly. 

2.3 Early Years Grant – reduction of £640,000
The Early Years budget of £18.1m reflects the funding required for 2, 3 and 4 year 
olds who are entitled to receive free Early Education and Early Years Pupil 
Premium. The budget for this is based on the January 2017 census, and the 
projected costs have been updated to reflect actual payments made in relation to 
the autumn term. It is important to note however that final checks and 
reconciliations are still being carried out on the autumn term payments, and this 
will be updated at the next Forum.

The take up of the 2 year old offer increased during the summer term, but reduced 
slightly in autumn although overall is still in line with the budget. Early Years Pupil 
Premium numbers are also slightly over the estimated amount. 

There has been a reduction in 3/4 year old take up, and take up of the extended 
30 hour offer is significantly below the budgeted amount, which was based on 
DfE’s estimate of eligible children. It is expected that this will gradually increase 
over the next 18 months and will eventually be in line with DfE estimate that 
extended funding will be approximately 60% of the universal funding. 

The reduction compared with the budget will be offset by a corresponding 
adjustment to DSG funding.

2.4 Schools Forum – projected under spend £5,600
A £5k contribution to the Benefits team in the Finance Department has been 
committed to finance additional resources for the Free School Meals work Page 59

Agenda Item 8



undertaken, with the aim of maximising DSG claimed in the October 17 census, 
and Pupil Premium in the January 18 census. 

2.5 Admissions – projected underspend £25,000
This centrally managed budget is expecting a small underspend relating to 
uncommitted budgets.

2.6 Insurances – projected underspend £15,000
An underspend is expected against this budget, due to a low number of VA 
schools claiming back the costs of their liability insurance. 

2.7    Special Staff Costs – no projected variance
This budget continues to be monitored closely and is currently projecting no 
variance against budget: 

Budget
Projected 

Spend
Projected 
Variance

    £ £ £
Maternity, Paternity & Other Staff Costs 582,700 582,700 0
TU Facilities 86,800 86,800 0
Insurance & Recharges 6,900 6,900 0
Total 676,400 676,400 0

2.8    Contribution to Combined Budgets – no projected variance
The combined budgets of £0.9m are broken down as follows: 

   Budget
    £

School Improvement 330,000
Discretionary Rate Relief Top Up 106,600
LCSB contribution 30,000
Governors Forum 2,200
PFI Support Team 61,800
LACES 140,500
School Intervention 136,000
CLC PFI 68,500
Total 875,600

It is anticipated that these budgets will be fully committed. 

2.9 School Specific Contingencies – projected overspend £15,000
There is a contingency budget of £100,500 to take into account any specific costs 
that cannot be met from school budgets. It is expected that this budget will 
overspend due to business rates, particularly for old children’s centres sites 
attached to schools, being greater than when estimating the budget. 

2.10 Special Education Needs Top Ups – projected overspend £228,000
A budget of £9.2m funds the Pupil Led Top Up funding in Specialist Provision, 
Resource Bases, FE, Colleges and Alternative Provision. Budgets were increased 
for 2017-18 to reflect additional learners at Wirral Metropolitan College and 
Birkenhead Sixth Form College and increased placements at Emslie Morgan 
Academy. 

Projections have been updated to account for the autumn term census figures, 
and while numbers were slightly lower than budgeted in bases, an overspend is Page 60



expected in Special Schools where numbers are higher than budgeted, in addition 
to greater needs moving towards higher top-up bands. 

While at this stage FE and 6th Form Top Ups are expected to be fully spent, there 
are £22,000 of additional costs due to placements at Emslie Morgan Academy, 
and Additional Nursing Support is projecting an overspend due to two unexpected 
invoices relating to previous years. 

The breakdown of the budget is as follows:

Budget
Projected

Spend
Projected
Variance

    £ £ £
Top Ups for Maintained Special Schools 6,527,400 6,752,400 225,000
Top Ups for Resourced provision 704,000 645,000 -59,000
Alternative provision 367,000 389,000 22,000
FE and 6TH Form Top Ups 946,000 946,000 0
Additional Nursing Support 127,100 167,100 40,000
Exceptional Needs 504,100 504,100 0
Total 9,175,600 9,403,600 228,000

2.11 Special Education Needs Statements – projected underspend £58,000
Numbers updated for autumn term indicate that Primary statements will 
overspend by £120,000, with a small saving on Secondary school statements. 
However an underspend of £150,000 is expected on the Early Years Inclusive 
Practice Fund, although this assumes similar funding will be approved in the final 
2 panel sittings in 2017-18 as in the autumn term. This is due to the change in the 
awards process, as approved at December Forum, having only been implemented 
mid-way through the year. It is therefore expected that this budget will be spent in 
full in future years. 

2.12 Independent Special Schools – projected underspend £265,000
Some of this budget remains uncommitted, and while much of this will be 
committed during the final months of the year a £100,000 underspend is expected  
from reduced placements. This has also been reflected in a budget reduction for 
2018-19 elsewhere on the agenda. 

There is also an additional £165,000 underspend related to amounts that were 
carried over from 2016/17 based on the information available at the time. 
However, updated information indicates that these costs are no longer due, and 
therefore constitute a one-off saving in 2017-18. 

2.13 Support for SEN – projected underspend £200,000
There are a number of vacant posts in the Speech and Language, Hearing and 
Vision, and Pre-School Portage teams, resulting in an anticipated underspend. 

2.14 Home Tuition – projected overspend £50,000
The Home Tuition Service is expected to overspend due to increased demand for 
the service, and to ensure it can meet statutory requirements. This is reflected by 
a proposed budget increase in 2018-19 elsewhere on the agenda. 

2.15 DSG - £165,257,100 
The schools budget includes £568,900 of DSG carried forward from 2016/17. The 
DSG is adjusted to the reported position as follows: 

Original DSG Budget   250,795,200Page 61



Academy Recoupment – Schools Block   (75,613,500)
Academy Recoupment – High Needs Block     (4,083,000)
Early Years reduction (Jan-17 census)                 (783,300)
Other Adjustments              5,100
Academy conversions June 2017     (4,423,400)
Anticipated Early Years Adjustment        (640,000)

  165,257,100

3.0 UPDATE ON SPECIFIC RESERVES 

3.1 The DSG reserves total £1.9m and have been earmarked in the accounts as
follows: 
  
- Job Evaluation and Pay Harmonisation Reserve - £0.65m

- DSG Reserve - £1.0m
                     £

DSG Carry Forward from 2016/17 1,072,400
Budgeted use of Reserve in 2017/18     (568,900)
Additional DSG for 2016/17      29,900

                533,400

- City Learning Centres - £0.045m
This reserve will be used in 2017/18 to fund the remaining final closure costs in 
relation to the City Learning Centres. 

- Early Years  £0.13m
This reserve of £130,500 is expected to fund the Early Years Portal and expand 
the 2 year old provision. 

4.0 CONCLUSION

4.1 The Schools Budget is monitored throughout the year, and any projected 
variances against budget will be reported to the Forum.   

5.0 RECOMMENDATIONS

5.1 That the Forum notes the report.

Paul Boyce
Director of Children’s Services

Page 62



Appendix 1 – Budget Variations 2017/18
Adjusted 
Budget 
2017/18

Projected 
Spend 

2017/18
Variation 
2017/18

£ £ £
Individual Schools Budget:
Primary Schools 95,172,700 90,749,300 -4,423,400
Secondary Schools 20,884,800 20,884,800 0
Special Schools 8,941,300 8,941,300 0
SEN Bases 1,580,000 1,580,000 0
Wirral Hospital School 1,356,300 1,356,300 0
Early Years 18,104,900 17,464,900 -640,000
Individual Schools Budget Total 146,040,000 140,976,600 -5,063,400

Central School Costs:
Early Years 518,700 518,700 0
Admissions 341,800 316,800 -25,000
School Closure / retirement costs 60,000 60,000 0
Licences and Subscriptions 226,100 226,100 0
Schools Forum 10,600 5,000 -5,600
Contribution to Combined Budgets 875,600 875,600 0
PFI affordability gap 1,551,100 1,551,100 0
Retained duties - ex Education Support 
Grant 1,021,600 1,021,600 0

Costs delegated to schools:
Library Service 191,700 191,700 0
Insurances 29,200 14,200 -15,000
School Specific Contingencies 100,500 115,500 15,000
Special Staff Costs 676,400 676,400 0
School Meals 19,700 19,700 0
Behaviour Support 84,200 84,200 0
School Improvement 101,600 101,600 0

High Needs Pupils:
Statements 4,174,800 4,116,800 -58,000
SEN Top Ups 9,175,600 9,403,600 228,000
High Needs Contingency 305,100 305,100 0
Independent Special Schools 3,770,000 3,505,000 -265,000
Home Tuition 348,900 398,900 50,000
Support for SEN 1,971,500 1,771,500 -200,000
Special School Transport 58,200 58,200 0
Non Delegated School Costs Total 25,612,900 25,337,300 -275,600

   
Total School and Central Costs 171,652,900 166,313,900 -5,339,000

Dedicated Schools Grant -170,320,500 -165,257,100 5,063,400
Use of Reserves -568,900 -568,900 0
Grand Total 763,500 487,900 -275,600

Page 63



This page is intentionally left blank



WIRRAL COUNCIL

SCHOOLS FORUM – 17th JANUARY 2018

REPORT OF THE DIRECTOR OF CHILDREN’S SERVICES

SCHOOLS BUDGET MONITORING REPORT 2017/18

1.0 EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

1.1 The purpose of this report is to update the Forum on the Schools Budget position 
and anticipated variations in the current year. There is an estimated underspend of 
£275,600 at quarter 3.

2.0 ANTICIPATED BUDGET VARIATIONS

2.1 The table attached summarises the Schools Budget for 2017-18. The main 
variations, as well as comments on specific budget areas, are set out below. 

2.2 Primary, Secondary and Special Schools
Four Primary Schools – Egremont, Great Meols, Poulton Lancelyn, and Stanton 
Road - converted to Academy status as part of a Multi-Academy Trust from 1st 
June 2017. No further conversions are anticipated this year. 

Schools converting to Academy status result in a reduction in DSG grant income 
received, which is matched by reduced spending through the delegated budget. 
Budgets for the schools will be adjusted accordingly. 

2.3 Early Years Grant – reduction of £640,000
The Early Years budget of £18.1m reflects the funding required for 2, 3 and 4 year 
olds who are entitled to receive free Early Education and Early Years Pupil 
Premium. The budget for this is based on the January 2017 census, and the 
projected costs have been updated to reflect actual payments made in relation to 
the autumn term. It is important to note however that final checks and 
reconciliations are still being carried out on the autumn term payments, and this 
will be updated at the next Forum.

The take up of the 2 year old offer increased during the summer term, but reduced 
slightly in autumn although overall is still in line with the budget. Early Years Pupil 
Premium numbers are also slightly over the estimated amount. 

There has been a reduction in 3/4 year old take up, and take up of the extended 
30 hour offer is significantly below the budgeted amount, which was based on 
DfE’s estimate of eligible children. It is expected that this will gradually increase 
over the next 18 months and will eventually be in line with DfE estimate that 
extended funding will be approximately 60% of the universal funding. 

The reduction compared with the budget will be offset by a corresponding 
adjustment to DSG funding.

2.4 Schools Forum – projected under spend £5,600
A £5k contribution to the Benefits team in the Finance Department has been 
committed to finance additional resources for the Free School Meals work Page 65

Agenda Item 9



undertaken, with the aim of maximising DSG claimed in the October 17 census, 
and Pupil Premium in the January 18 census. 

2.5 Admissions – projected underspend £25,000
This centrally managed budget is expecting a small underspend relating to small 
uncommitted budgets and reduced costs in relation to examination fees.

2.6 Insurances – projected underspend £15,000
An underspend is expected against this budget, due to a low number of VA 
schools claiming back the costs of their liability insurance. 

2.7    Special Staff Costs – no projected variance
This budget continues to be monitored closely and is currently projecting no 
variance against budget: 

Budget
Projected 

Spend
Projected 
Variance

    £ £ £
Maternity, Paternity & Other Staff Costs 582,700 582,700 0
TU Facilities 86,800 86,800 0
Insurance & Recharges 6,900 6,900 0
Total 676,400 676,400 0

2.8    Contribution to Combined Budgets – no projected variance
The combined budgets of £0.9m are broken down as follows: 

   Budget
    £

School Improvement 330,000
Discretionary Rate Relief Top Up 106,600
LCSB contribution 30,000
Governors Forum 2,200
PFI Support Team 61,800
LACES 140,500
School Intervention 136,000
CLC PFI 68,500
Total 875,600

It is anticipated that these budgets will be fully committed. 

2.9 School Specific Contingencies – projected overspend £15,000
There is a contingency budget of £100,500 to take into account any specific costs 
that cannot be met from school budgets. It is expected that this budget will 
overspend due to business rates, particularly for old children’s centers sites 
attached to schools, being greater than when estimating the budget. 

2.10 Special Education Needs Top Ups – projected overspend £228,000
A budget of £9.2m funds the Pupil Led Top Up funding in Specialist Provision, 
Resource Bases, FE, Colleges and Alternative Provision. Budgets were increased 
for 2017-18 to reflect additional learners at Wirral Metropolitan College and 
Birkenhead Sixth Form College and increased placements at Emslie Morgan 
Academy. 

Projections have been updated to account for the autumn term census figures, 
and while numbers were slightly lower than budgeted in bases, an overspend is Page 66



expected in Special Schools where numbers are higher than budgeted, in addition 
to greater needs moving towards higher top-up bands. 

While at this stage FE and 6th Form Top Ups are expected to be fully spent, there 
are £22,000 of additional costs due to placements at Emslie Morgan Academy, 
and Additional Nursing Support is projecting an overspend due to two unexpected 
invoices relating to previous years. 

The breakdown of the budget is as follows:

Budget
Projected

Spend
Projected
Variance

    £ £ £
Top Ups for Maintained Special Schools 6,527,400 6,752,400 225,000
Top Ups for Resourced provision 704,000 645,000 -59,000
Alternative provision 367,000 389,000 22,000
FE and 6TH Form Top Ups 946,000 946,000 0
Additional Nursing Support 127,100 167,100 40,000
Exceptional Needs 504,100 504,100 0
Total 9,175,600 9,403,600 228,000

2.11 Special Education Needs Statements – projected underspend £58,000
Numbers updated for autumn term indicate that Primary statements will 
overspend by £120,000, with a small saving on Secondary school statements. 
However an underspend of £150,000 is expected on the Early Years Inclusive 
Practice Fund, although this assumes similar funding will be approved in the final 
2 panel sittings in 2017-18 as in the autumn term. This is due to the change in the 
awards process, as approved at December Forum, having only been implemented 
mid-way through the year. It is therefore expected that this budget will be spent in 
full in future years. 

2.12 Independent Special Schools – projected underspend £265,000
Some of this budget remains uncommitted, and while much of this will be 
committed during the final months of the year a £100,000 underspend in-year 
underspend is expected due to the work carried out by the SEN Team to reduce 
placements in Independent Special Schools. This has also been reflected in a 
budget reduction for 2018-19 elsewhere on the agenda. 

There is also an additional £165,000 underspend related to amounts that were 
carried over from 2016/17 based on the information available at the time. 
However, updated information indicates that these costs are no longer due, and 
therefore constitute a one-off saving in 2017-18. 

2.13 Support for SEN – projected underspend £200,000
There are a number of vacant posts in the Speech and Language, Hearing and 
Vision, and Pre-School Portage teams, resulting in an anticipated underspend. 

2.14 Home Tuition – projected overspend £50,000
The Home Tuition Service is expected to overspend due to increased demand for 
the service, and to ensure it can meet statutory requirements. This is reflected by 
a proposed budget increase in 2018-19 elsewhere on the agenda. 

2.15 DSG - £165,257,100 
The schools budget includes £568,900 of DSG carried forward from 2016/17. The 
DSG is adjusted to the reported position as follows: 

Page 67



Original DSG Budget   250,795,200
Academy Recoupment – Schools Block   (75,613,500)
Academy Recoupment – High Needs Block     (4,083,000)
Early Years reduction (Jan-17 census)                 (783,300)
Other Adjustments              5,100
Academy conversions June 2017     (4,423,400)
Anticipated Early Years Adjustment        (640,000)

  165,257,100

3.0 UPDATE ON SPECIFIC RESERVES 

3.1 The DSG reserves total £1.9m and have been earmarked in the accounts as
follows: 
  
- Job Evaluation and Pay Harmonisation Reserve - £0.65m

- DSG Reserve - £1.0m
                     £

DSG Carry Forward from 2016/17 1,072,400
Budgeted use of Reserve in 2017/18     (568,900)
Additional DSG for 2016/17      29,900

                533,400

- City Learning Centres - £0.045m
This reserve will be used in 2017/18 to fund the remaining final closure costs in 
relation to the City Learning Centres. 

- Early Years  £0.13m
This reserve of £130,500 is expected to fund the Early Years Portal and expand 
the 2 year old provision. 

4.0 CONCLUSION

4.1 The Schools Budget is monitored throughout the year, and any projected 
variances against budget will be reported to the Forum.   

5.0 RECOMMENDATIONS

5.1 That the Forum notes the report.

Paul Boyce
Director of Children’s Services

Page 68



Appendix 1 – Budget Variations 2017/18
Adjusted 
Budget 
2017/18

Projected 
Spend 

2017/18
Variation 
2017/18

£ £ £
Individual Schools Budget:
Primary Schools 95,172,700 90,749,300 -4,423,400
Secondary Schools 20,884,800 20,884,800 0
Special Schools 8,941,300 8,941,300 0
SEN Bases 1,580,000 1,580,000 0
Wirral Hospital School 1,356,300 1,356,300 0
Early Years 18,104,900 17,464,900 -640,000
Individual Schools Budget Total 146,040,000 140,976,600 -5,063,400

Central School Costs:
Early Years 518,700 518,700 0
Admissions 341,800 316,800 -25,000
School Closure / retirement costs 60,000 60,000 0
Licences and Subscriptions 226,100 226,100 0
Schools Forum 10,600 5,000 -5,600
Contribution to Combined Budgets 875,600 875,600 0
PFI affordability gap 1,551,100 1,551,100 0
Retained duties - ex Education Support 
Grant 1,021,600 1,021,600 0

Costs delegated to schools:
Library Service 191,700 191,700 0
Insurances 29,200 14,200 -15,000
School Specific Contingencies 100,500 115,500 15,000
Special Staff Costs 676,400 676,400 0
School Meals 19,700 19,700 0
Behaviour Support 84,200 84,200 0
School Improvement 101,600 101,600 0

High Needs Pupils:
Statements 4,174,800 4,116,800 -58,000
SEN Top Ups 9,175,600 9,403,600 228,000
High Needs Contingency 305,100 305,100 0
Independent Special Schools 3,770,000 3,505,000 -265,000
Home Tuition 348,900 398,900 50,000
Support for SEN 1,971,500 1,771,500 -200,000
Special School Transport 58,200 58,200 0
Non Delegated School Costs Total 25,612,900 25,337,300 -275,600

   
Total School and Central Costs 171,652,900 166,313,900 -5,339,000

Dedicated Schools Grant -170,320,500 -165,257,100 5,063,400
Use of Reserves -568,900 -568,900 0
Grand Total 763,500 487,900 -275,600

Page 69



This page is intentionally left blank



WIRRAL COUNCIL

WIRRAL SCHOOLS’ FORUM   17th January 2018

REPORT OF THE DIRECTOR OF CHILDREN’S SERVICES

Forum Membership Review
_____________________________________________________________________

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

This report describes the current representation of the Forum and the procedure for 
deputies attending forum meetings in place of members.  It also seeks the views of the 
Forum regarding a proposal to increase early years membership and consider other 
representation.  This decision was deferred from the December meeting.

Current Representation

The table below details the current makeup of the Wirral Schools’ Forum representation and 
when the terms of office are. There is currently a primary governor vacancy.

2014-
2018

2015-
2019

2016- 
2020

2017-
2021 Total

Total 
Membership       

5 Primary Headteachers  1 2 2 5
4 Primary Governors 1  1 1 3
1 Secondary Headteachers   1  1
1 Secondary Governors  1   1
1 Special Headteacher   1  1
1 Special Governors   1  1
1 Nursery Representative   1  1

14 Total Schools Membership      

1
Academy Pupil Referral Unit 
(EMAP)    1 1

8 Academy Representative  2 2 4 8
9 Total Academy Membership      
1 Non-teacher representative   1  1
1 Teacher representative 1    1
1 Catholic Diocese  1   1
1 Church of England Diocese  1   1
1 Further Education    1 1
2 PVI Early Years Providers  1 1  2
7 Total Non-Schools Membership      

30 Total Membership 2 7 11 9 29

Providing Deputies to Forum Meetings

The Forum regulations allow for all members to identify a deputy to take their place when 
they cannot attend a Forum meeting.   The deputy must be from the same phase as the 

Page 71

Agenda Item 10



member, e.g, a Primary Headteacher can substitute for a Primary Headteacher rep, but not 
a Primary Governor Rep.  Deputies will have the same voting rights. 
The member should inform the Forum administrator (Sue Ashley) the name of the deputy 
and their e-mail address no later than 1 day before the meeting.

Increasing the Early Years Membership

There are 3 early years representatives (1 nursery and 2 Private Voluntary and 
Independent (PVI)).  The PVI sector has requested that their membership on the Forum is 
increased by 2 places. This change would give the opportunity to more broadly reflect views 
of this sector and the growth in provision. If agreed membership would continue to be 
managed by the group as currently and one post would be held by the chair of Wirral’s 
National Day Nursery Association. 

Guidance indicates the LA should appoint at least 1 person to represent Early Years PVI 
providers.

Other School Forum Members

It is intended that non-school representatives should come from a range of stakeholders 
and partners. These include appropriate faith groups, SEN providers, post 16, professional 
associations and TU’s, PVIs and representatives of youth groups.
Schools Forum regulations require school and academy representation to be at least 2/3rds 
of total membership. There are currently 23 school and academy reps and 8 non-school 
reps.  The non-school representatives can increase to a maximum of 11on this basis. 
If a further 2 places are agreed for the PVI sector there are a further 2 places that could be 
offered to partners. At the December Forum Meeting suggestions provided were nursery 
classes, 14-19 year olds and Youth.

Recommendations

 Forum notes the report
 Forum agrees the procedure of deputies as described above
 Forum approves the changes described to Early Years PVI representation.
 Forum considers representation from other partners

 

Paul Boyce
Director of Children’s Services

Page 72



Published September 2017 1 

 

Schools forum powers and responsibilities 

A summary of the powers and responsibilities of schools forums. 

Function Local authority Schools forum DfE role 

Formula change (including redistributions) 

 

 

Proposes and decides Must be consulted (voting 

restrictions apply). See 

schools forum structure 

document that informs the 

governing bodies of all 

consultations 

Checks for compliance 

with regulations 

Movement of up to 0.5% from the schools block to 

other blocks 
Proposes Decides 

Adjudicates where schools 

forum does not agree LA 

proposal 

Contracts (where the LA is entering a contract to be 

funded from the schools budget) 

Proposes at least one 

month prior to invitation to 

tender, the terms of any 

proposed contract 

Gives a view and informs 

the governing bodies of all 

consultations 

None 

Financial issues relating to: Consults annually Gives a view and informs None 

P
age 73

A
genda Item

 11



Published September 2017 2 

Function Local authority Schools forum DfE role 

 arrangements for pupils with special 

educational needs, in particular the places to 

be commissioned by the LA and schools and 

the arrangements for paying top-up funding  

 arrangements for use of pupil referral units 

and the education of children otherwise than at 

school, in particular the places to be 

commissioned by the LA and schools and the 

arrangements for paying top-up funding 

 arrangements for early years provision 

 administration arrangements for the allocation 

of central government grants 

the governing bodies of all 

consultations 

Minimum funding guarantee (MFG) 

Proposes any exclusions 

from MFG for application 

to DfE 

 

Gives a view 
Approval to application for 

exclusions 

De-delegation for mainstream maintained schools for: 

 contingencies 

 administration of free school meals 

Proposes 

Maintained primary and 

secondary school member 

representatives will decide 

for their phase. Middle 

schools are treated 

according to their deemed 

Will adjudicate where 

schools forum does not 

agree LA proposal 

P
age 74



Published September 2017 3 

Function Local authority Schools forum DfE role 

 insurance 

 licences/subscriptions 

 staff costs – supply cover 

 support for minority ethnic  

 pupils/underachieving groups 

 behaviour support services 

 library and museum services 

 School improvement  

status 

General Duties for maintained schools 

 Contribution to responsibilities that local 
authorities hold for maintained schools  
(please see operational guide for more 
information) 

Proposes 

Would be decided by the 
relevant maintained 
school members (primary, 
secondary, special and 
PRU). 

Adjudicates where schools 
forum does not agree LA 
proposal 

Central spend on and the criteria for allocating 

funding from: 

 funding for significant pre-16 pupil growth, 

including new schools set up to meet basic 

need, whether maintained or academy 

Proposes Decides 

Adjudicates where schools 

forum does not agree LA 

proposal 

P
age 75

https://www.gov.uk/guidance/pre-16-schools-funding-guidance-for-2018-to-2019


Published September 2017 4 

Function Local authority Schools forum DfE role 

 funding for good or outstanding schools with 

falling rolls where growth in pupil numbers is 

expected within three years 

Central spend on: 

 early years block provision  

 funding to enable all schools to meet the infant 

class size requirement  

 back-pay for equal pay claims  

 remission of boarding fees at maintained 

schools and academies  

 places in independent schools for non-SEN 

pupils  

 admissions 

 servicing of schools forum 

 Contribution to responsibilities that local 

authorities hold for all schools 

Proposes Decides 

Adjudicates where schools 

forum does not agree LA 

proposal 

Central spend on: 

 capital expenditure funded from revenue: 

projects must have been planned and decided 

on prior to April 2013 so no new projects can 

Proposes up to the value 

committed in the previous 

financial year and where 

expenditure has already 

been committed. 

Decides for each line 

Adjudicates where schools 

forum does not agree LA 

proposal 

P
age 76



Published September 2017 5 

Function Local authority Schools forum DfE role 

be charged  

 contribution to combined budgets: this is 

where the schools forum agreed prior to April 

2013 a contribution from the schools budget to 

services which would otherwise be funded 

from other sources 

 existing termination of employment costs 

(costs for specific individuals must have been 

approved prior to April 2013 so no new 

redundancy costs can be charged)  

 prudential borrowing costs – the commitment 

must have been approved prior to April 2013 

 

See table four page 31 to 

35 for Information on 

historic commitments. 

Read establishing local 

authority DSG baselines 

for more information. 

Central spend on: 

 high needs block provision  

 central licences negotiated by the Secretary of 

State  

Decides 
None, but good practice to 

inform forum 
None 

Carry forward a deficit on central expenditure to the 

next year to be funded from the schools budget Proposes Decides 

Adjudicates where schools 

forum does not agree LA 

proposal 

Any brought forward deficit on de-delegated services 

which is to be met by the overall schools budget.  Proposes Decides 

Adjudicates where schools 

forum does not agree LA 

proposal 

P
age 77

https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/establishing-local-authority-dedicated-schools-grant-baselines
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/establishing-local-authority-dedicated-schools-grant-baselines


Published September 2017 6 

Function Local authority Schools forum DfE role 

Scheme of financial management changes 

Proposes and consults the 

governing body and Head 

of every school 

Approves (schools 

members only) 

Adjudicates where schools 

forum does not agree LA 

proposal 

Membership: length of office of members 
Decides 

None (but good practice 

would suggest that they 

gave a view) 

None 

Voting procedures None 
Determine voting 

procedures 
None 

Chair of schools forum Facilitates 

Elects (may not be an 

elected member of the 

Council or officer) 

None 

 

P
age 78



Published March 2015 1 

 

Schools forums structure 

A summary of the structure of schools forums. 

Category Schools members Academies members Non-school members 

Represented groups Where the LA maintains the 

following types of school, they must 

be represented on the schools 

forum: 

 Primary Schools 

 Secondary Schools 

 Special Schools 

 Nursery Schools 

 PRUs 

At least one academies member 

must be a representative of 

mainstream academies, which 

includes free schools, UTCs and 

Studio Schools. In addition, there 

must be one member for each of 

the following groups (if such exist in 

the LA area): 

 Special academies, 

including free schools 

 Alternative provision 

academies, including free 

schools 

16-19 providers 

Early years Private, Voluntary and 

Independent (PVI) providers 

Before considering other groups, 

the LA must consider diocesan 

representation 

P
age 79



Published March 2015 2 

Category Schools members Academies members Non-school members 

Type of member Within each of the five groups 

above there could be the following 

types of member: 

 Headteachers (or their 

representative) 

 Governors 

 Headteachers and 

Governors 

 In overall terms there must 

be at least one headteacher 

(or their representative) and 

one governor 

Any Any 

Schools forum 

structure 

Schools members and academies 

members must comprise at least 

2/3rds of the schools forum 

membership 

Primary schools, secondary 

schools and academies must be 

broadly proportionately represented 

on schools forum, based on the 

total number of pupils registered at 

them 

Schools members and academies 

members must comprise at least 

2/3rds of the schools forum 

membership 

Primary schools, secondary 

schools and academies must be 

broadly proportionately represented 

on schools forum, based on the 

total number of pupils registered at 

them 

 

Voting Only primary representatives can No voting on de-delegation or the No voting on de-delegation or the 

P
age 80



Published March 2015 3 

Category Schools members Academies members Non-school members 

vote on primary school de-

delegation 

Only secondary representatives 

can vote on secondary school de-

delegation 

All schools members can vote on 

the scheme for financing schools 

All schools members can vote on 

any other schools forum business, 

including the consultation on the 

funding formula 

scheme for financing schools 

All academies members can vote 

on any other schools forum 

business, including the consultation 

on the funding formula 

scheme for financing schools 

Only PVI representatives can vote 

on the consultation on the funding 

formula. 

All non-school members can vote 

on any other schools forum 

business 

Elected by The relevant sub-group of the 

relevant type of school e.g. primary 

school governor representatives 

are elected by the governors of 

primary schools, secondary school 

headteachers are elected by the 

headteachers of secondary 

schools. 

The relevant proprietors of 

academies elect for their group, 

e.g. mainstream academies, 

special academies and alternative 

provision academies 

Election only applies to the 

representative for the 16-19 

providers, who is elected by all 

eligible 16-19 providers  

LA appointment of 

members 

Only if no election takes place by 

the agreed date or in the event of a 

tie 

Only if no election takes place by 

the agreed date or in the event of a 

tie 

Can appoint a 16-19 representative 

only if no election takes place by 

the agreed date or in the event of a 

tie 

For all other non-schools members 

P
age 81



Published March 2015 4 

Category Schools members Academies members Non-school members 

the LA appoints, but it is good 

practice to seek nominations from 

the relevant bodies 

Other attendees who are permitted to contribute to a schools forum meeting: 

 An observer appointed by the Secretary of State 

 The Chief Financial Officer 

 The Director of Children’s Services 

 Officers providing financial & technical advice to schools forum 

 The Executive Member for Children’s Services  

 Presenters (restricted to the paper they are presenting) 

 The Executive Member with responsibility for resources 
 

P
age 82



WIRRAL SCHOOLS FORUM – 17th January 2018
WORK PLAN 
Meeting 
Date

25th April 2018 Wed 4th July 2018 September 2018 January 2019

Elect chair & vice chair
Budget Schools Budget update 2018-

19
Schools Budget provisional 
outturn 
Update on School 
budgets/balances

Schools Budget Outturn 
2017-18
School Balances and 
Reserves
School Budget Monitoring

Budget monitoring and Final 
DSG
Update on School 
budgets/balances

Budget Monitoring
Schools Budget 2019-20
Changes to Schools, High 
Needs and Early Years 
funding formula
De-delegation of budgets 
Update on School 
budgets/balances

Consultation National Funding Formula for 
Schools & High Needs 2019-20

DfE Regs & 
guidelines

DfE Operational Guide School Finance Regulations 
Schools Forum Structure 
(identifies voting rights)

Working 
Groups

School Formula
High Needs
Early Years

School Formula
High Needs
Early Years

School Formula
High Needs
Early Years

School Formula
High Needs
Early Years

Other School Admissions
Early Years 
Traded services
Free School Meals eligibility 
update
Behaviour Support
Arrangements and funding for 
School Exclusions

Arrangements for Alternative 
Provision
Energy update
Arrangements for High 
Needs /SEND

Forum Membership
Combined budgets
PFI budgets
Other central budgets
High needs funding & places 
Primary place planning
De-delegated services
 Contingency
 Special Staff Costs
 Library Service 
 Insurance
 Behaviour Support

School Contracts
MEAs Update
Academy update
Sensory support Service 
Update

P
age 83

A
genda Item

 12



T
his page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	1 Minutes of the meeting held on 13th December 2017
	3 MEAS Update
	4 Review of High Needs in Wirral
	5 Schools and High Needs Funding Formula 2018-19 Update
	School Funding Formula
	Schools Forum working group 09.01.18
	School consulttaion 17-18 options v2 11.01.18

	6 Schools Budgets 2018-19
	7 De-delegation of Budgets
	8 Schools Balances and Deficit Budgets
	9 Budget Monitoring 2017-18
	10 Schools Forum Membership and Structure
	11 Schools Forum Powers and Responsibilities and Structure
	Schools_forums_structure Dec 16

	12 Workplan

